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Quality Policy for ASL
HE R EE &S

We are dedicated to delivering effective and efficient IT
solution ON TIME through CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
on our processes, products and services in order to achieve:
RPN EBFEXSEMRE - EmMRFAEREMRESR
mMBENERB RS R - EmEE

v Maximum efficiency in operation

v Satisfaction of our customers, shareholders, business
partners and staff
B S g ENE

ZRFNEE RR  ZBEBHARETIHRME

Formation of ASL Quality Council BB 25 mETE S 2 KL

ASL Quality Council is set up to formulate continuous quality improvement strategy and oversee
the implementation of the Quality Management System at the corporate level.

HBRSREEEENR Y S EFEFENEREN TR NEEERN LEEREEERARNHT

Automated Systems (HK) Ltd. BEE1 %4 (F8) BRA T

apapility Maturity Model™ Integration - Qver IX Sigma Green be
Capability Maturity Model® Int tion (CMMI) Over 40 Six Si G Belt
Version 1.1 — Maturity Level 3 Rating BAOB AT BREERES
f ey f ey Capability Maturity Model Integration (CMMI) — 1 Gertified Master Black Belt
A =4
11 - BEAEEA — EATRERE AR
ce nilr?gt!:o:‘rf?&sos ce nilr?gt!:o:‘rf?&ms ®CMMI is registered in‘the US Patent and Trademark Office
Infrastructure and Enterprise Business by Gamegie Mellon University
Managed Services Division Solutions Division CMMI T5 RS X AR X B ERIR R B 2 iR
AR ER R BEEBHED
HEERRGE

ELM Computer Technologies Limited B E MR AR AT

Provision of information Computer Information System Integration
technology system integration, (SI) Qualification Certification
software development, - Level 3 Qualification

m installation and maintenance

: support sevices GIEREERRERELRR)

R AR R AR TR —EBoRBEE

1S0 9001:2000 B RR R EE SRR

Certificate No.: CC3268 This certificate was granted by the Ministry of

Information Industry of the PRC Government

L ERE RS SRR
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Financial Calendar

Results Announcement
EEN
First quarter 8th August, 2006
Interim 24th November, 2006
H i —EERF+—A= WA
Third quarter 28th February, 2007
FE==F —EE+F-_A=+/)\H
Annual 271st June, 2007
2E —EE+FAA=+—H
Dividend
Bz 2

N
Interim dividend payment (3.0 HK cents per share) 15th January, 2007
AR B (FARS.07L) —EE+F—A+HA
Proposed final dividend payment (6.0 HK cents per share) 11th September, 2007
BORREARR B (FA%6.07l) —ZET+FhAT—H
Proposed special dividend payment (6.0 HK cents per share) 11th September, 2007
B RIAR S (R%6.07810) —EEH+FAA+—H

Closure of Register of Members

TERERDBFEES

24th August, 2007 to 28th August, 2007
TETHFNATHBRE_ZETEEFENA=FTNHR

Annual General Meeting

BRRBFKRS

28th August, 2007
—EEEFNAZTNR
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Financial Summary

Results
S
II‘E
Year ended 31st March,
BE=A=t—-BL#FE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2008
“EEtF TS NF —ZTRF —ZERFE —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEr THL FHT THT FHT
(note) (note)
CiE3) (Frst)
Tumover < 1,274,979 1,104,239 955,930 963,966 1,182,546
Profit before taxation PR A& A 61,837 54,652 39,470 21,482 43129
Taxation BE (8277)  (10,178) (5,891) (1,138) (2,506)
Profit for the year 2EGEH 53,560 44,479 33,579 20,344 40,623
Attributable to; THALEN:
Equity holders of ARBRAFEA
the Company 53,560 44,479 33,206 18,184 38,983
Minority interests PYRFEER - - 373 2,160 1,640
Profit for the year EERH 53,560 44,479 33,579 20,344 40,623
Assets and Liabilities
EEREE
As at 31st March,
R=A=+-H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
“ERtFE —ZERF —“ZTHF —“ZENFE —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL THT THL THT
Total assets BEE 892,453 786,349 784,740 778,207 791,990
Totdl liabilities BafE (368,498) (299,535) (317,296) (817,847) (345,482)

523,955 486,814 467,445 455,360 446,508

Equity attributable to equity ARRARE A

holders of the Company FEMEBRAR 523,955 486,814 467,445 448 447 441,755
Minority interests DY R R - - - 6,913 4,753

523,955 486,814 467,445 455,360 446,608

Note: The above financial summary prior to 2005 has not been adjusted to take fisE: N EZ ST RAFRMBERHEL RERAE  URBEENE
into account the effect on the adoption of certain HKFRSs that are effective FRZZZRFNA-—BR-ZFZFHNA—HAzz%
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2005 and Fs 2 Gt EAM AR BB SRS R &

1st April, 2006.
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T EHRE
Chairman’s Statement

Allen Joseph
PATHMARAJAH
Chairman /&

Profit for this year improved to
HK$53.6 million, a rise of 20.4%
over HK$44.5 million in last year.
AEERFHEINZES3,600,000/E T

B %K 244,500,0007# 5T HEH020.4%-
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the annual
report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (*ASL or “The Group”) for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2007.

This has been a great year for ASL as we marked our 10th consecutive
year of profitability since listing. The Group’s tumover increased by 15.6%
to HK$1,275.0 milion. Profit for the year improved to HK$53.6 million, a
rise of 20.4% over HK$44.5 milion in last year. Basic earnings per share
were 18.21 HK cents, compared with 15.18 HK cents in FYOG.

The financial position of the Group was strong and the cash balance at
the end of the year was HK$343.1 million. This continues to provide a
solid foundation for our sustainable growth in the future.

As an appreciation to our shareholders for their continued support, the
Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of 6.0 HK cents per
share and for the 3rd consecutive year a special dividend of 6.0 HK cents
per share. Together with the interim dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share
distributed to shareholders, the total dividends for the year would be

15.0 HK cents per share.

This year, we continued to focus in developing our business locally and
overseas. We expanded our market presence in mainland China by
establishing a subsidiary in Guangzhou. In Taiwan, we converted our
branch into a wholly owned subsidiary.

We also enhanced our focus on Human Resource Development and
Quality. Our training and development experienced an encouraging
growth in participation, as we further increased our knowledge
management and project management programmes. We will continue to
invest further in staff training and optimising the use of our training centre
and thereby aim to increase the average learing hours per employee. \We
will also place greater emphasis on career development for our high
potential staff.

To further improve our Quality, we have adopted Six Sigma to enhance
customer service, improve performance, and complement our existing
quality management systems. In line with the evolution to holistic
approach of offering integrated Information Technology (IT") systems
services management, our Six Sigma Master Black Belt together with over
40 Green Belts commenced evaluation and improvement projects
internally as well as externally for our clients. To maintain high quality
project management, we require all our project managers to qualify as
project management professionals within a certain period. For information
service management, we have quality assurance executives to facilitate
our staff in implementing ISO 20000 standard on [T service management
for our clients. The service delivery teams are required to possess the
Professional Certifications of [T Infrastructure Library (ITIL), the most widely
accepted approach to [T services management. The whole process is
overseen by the Quality Council established as a key corporate initiative to
enhance intermal quality processes and commitments to our clients.

EEHE

Chairman’s Statement

RAMAREEFERRABDENEBERAR (18
BESIK AR BE_TTLF=_A=1+—HI
MREE 2 F e

BEIRGRAFEEERA 8 LTREETFIER
Fle AR EE 7 & FAH IN15.5%F1,275,000,00078 7T °
AEERFIEMESS,600,0008 T BEFZ
44,500,000/ TTHE0120.4% > BIEAREF518.2175
iR =TT R REE R A15.187 e

AEEHBRABR RERZ2RESEHR B
343,100,000 Lot B H B 2 H BB R IREEE Y
Eﬁm"

%Wﬁﬂxi?iﬁiih EFgEARNER00BIZR
HIR R Wi = F RSN EA0 0B I 2 RIS
ERDIKTBERERS 0Bz TS 2FARER
BAZ15.07 -

REERFRNEERNBERAM FBINER - A EE
Eiﬁ;ﬁEAFJII &3 — R B AR IATISHRIANE -
éféZ%a’*%ﬁﬁ AREEEBERERERR
iﬁf‘ﬁﬁ

AREENCINBETRBEZERRANERERR
B o N AR EE — SR INE B EE LA R ERIA
B EtASEE 2 5 RERELHETE LIRS ASE
2R AR ESAEEE — PIREN B TR RERAAR
SE 2B RS ISR R 2 IR B R A
SEEMEEEREZ B T 2 BEHRK-

ATE—SRAMED AEECRAARIBUSRER
PRS- RARBAEEAEERE REEBRF A
REE2ANEE AN IRBEAEMBE ([EME
B]) ZFRSEIR  AKE 2 N TE Y5 R R BE
FRLERREE AR N EE R EINA R P TR e E
HEH - ATHIFEEERECERRYE AEEERMAE
B 43RBT AR N BB AR ATE B B ERT-BLE A
REERMES AE@EEREREFEURPHET AR
FPREMNEHE RIGETR A EEH ISO 20000281 iR 15
{ LrE @R A E B E AR B AR E ([ITL)) 2 5%
FE MLDEBEEZHES 2 BB ARG B EE
R AEEERY REERSUNENLRERF MR
ARFIRG REEReaREERERF-
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Chairman’s Statement

Our subsidiary ELIM Computer Technologies Limited (ELM) reached a
milestone in service quality by achieving ISO 90071 certification with scope
on both system services and application development. ELM also obtained
a Level 3 Quialification Certification of Computer Information System
Integration (Sl) from the PRC Government, demonstrating our capacity to
provide system integration services to clients in mainland China.

The Group was honored by a number of prestigious awards this year.
ASL won the 2007 Best Small-Cap Company Award in the annual poll of
Asia’s Best Companies (Hong Kong District) organized by interational
financial magazine FinanceAsia. ASL was considered within Hong Kong's
small capitalization category and received the highest number of votes by
investors and analysts in the region. We have also received an impressive
list of accolades from other prominent sources. These include:

- “Best Performed Sl Partner 2006” from Sun Microsystems

- “Enterprise Solution Partner of the Year 2007” from Computer
Associates
- “Top Selling Direct Partner — Content Management” from EMC

- “Best Government Reseller 2006” from Juniper Networks

- "Outstanding Performance Award 2006” from Oracle

These developments, have further improved ASLs reputation as an
industry leader and enhanced our competitive advantage and our market
potential, as we move higher in the value chain.

We continue to place importance on corporate governance standard and
practice. We are now in full compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except
that non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company's bye-laws.

AEEZMBARRMEMMRERQF ([HHE
i 1) #E AR 755 2 5 T 4B ) ER AR - 1E R e AR5 e e AR
B {EGERR ERTSISO 9001 3R 3E I B IR B e rh BlIK
FRRSE=FAERESFNERNELEES BELE
B BRRE R R P IR R AR ARG 2 B

REENFAETIRE AR LB i BRI
NEeF) BN DMRERT (FER) FEERTES
—ERHEPAMEER QB RRREAT S/
AR WHEE NREE RO ERAGESEH KK
B T H A E B R R SR RIE - G U RIA B

—  SunMicrosystemsfi# [ _ETNFHRERBER
REABE

—  JEComputer Associates B3 [ —Z T FE MR
R RBE

— BEEMCHEZ [ZEFEEHERMN —RNIEE
ESo

— ¥ Juniper Networksf8 8 [ — ST N FEREBRIT
gl
—  EOrecleBE [ ZTT A FEEMRIALE]

EUBRRAELE - SRE QB RGIERER B
- BHMTER RSB B FHEL L TI5E N MRt
REERBEFRA AL

AEEEEHENCRERENNER 2 ER - AEE
B ATE 28 LR RIS TIN5 2 o EA TR
PRI HESETTE W SFRIBAS E (EHER (T /AR R
KAz A BRI S RLEREE
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We continued our tradition of contributing to society this year by
participating in the Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon. ASL
sponsored 6 teams of our staff members. All donations support the Hong
Kong Paralympic Committee and Sports Association for the Physically
Disabled in promoting sports activities in the local disabled community
and improve the standards of various sports events.

As disclosed in the Company's announcements dated 14th May and 13th
June, 2007, our controling shareholder, Computer Sciences Corporation
(CSC) is considering various alternatives regarding its investment in ASL,
including possible disposal of their interest in the Company. We will keep
the shareholders updated appropriately as this matter progresses.

During the year, Ms. Esther Tan Suan Kheng resigned from the Board. |
wish to thank her for her valuable contribution. | welcome Mr. Andrew
John Anker who was appointed in her place.

EEHE

Chairman’s Statement

AEERFAEHESETESR BR2EET BN
NEB B B RAER B B TNz Bihe-Pis ?ﬁm
HREXRHEERAANRZRESREALTREDHS
TR TR HEEES /EEU&}EH%IE%EEJ IE
B H7K e

AR RRN —_EELFRAATHEAEARASNAT=ZAT
BRI ER  NEE 2 IR AR R Computer Sciences
Corporanon (CSC) EERZEEBENREBBRFAN A
R HA BB e E AR A AR R 2 o IR
BARTEEE -

BB TR ERBHTESZ QA - ANA i S B
H 2 EE B W HHEFEBT 2 Andrew John Anker4t
AR IRED

This year, the Group
continued to focus in developing
the business locally and overseas.

AEENRFERLES
R AN RO INEFE

On behalf of the Board, | thank the management and staff for their
dedication and contribution in achieving great results this year. | would like
to take this opportunity to thank our valued clients, business partners and
shareholders for their continued support.

In conclusion, | thank my fellow directors for their whole-hearted co-
operation and support.

Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st June, 2007

RARNROBEHERENE TEHEERR AL
BN FEBABARE AT BEEARER Y
BEEP EBBH MR ZIFEIFEAR DR -

RE AAZNBHEEGKNE 2 NAERR X

Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
9
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Managing Director's Statement
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SREREY ShEdsas

EEREESEN BE &

ITETE N T i
BSREARRURAENE LAl Yam Ting 383 &

Uk sEsevR EHES Managing Director Z FAEAZFE

The Group will continue to grow and
refine the services and solutions
business to make Hong Kong a centre
of excellence whose experience and
expertise be repeatable in our
overseas business.
AEEFESERRREARBRFBRAR
X5 SEERBEHER DL EHLAR
REEME BN EF L EER-

08  AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEZ&AEBMARAT  Annua Report 2007 &



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Results

Tumover for the full year was HK$1,275.0 million, representing an increase
of 156.5% as compared to the previous year. Turmover for the fourth and
final quarter of FYO7 was HK$387.5 million, or a 11.7% year-on-year
increase to FYOB. Product sales and service revenue increased by 16.1%
and 14.1% respectively against last year to HK$846.6 milion and
HK$428.4 million, and they made up 66.4% and 33.6% of the total
turmover for FYO7.

Commercial and public sector sales contributed 53.2% and 46.8% to
annual tumover respectively, as compared to 47.2% and 52.8% in the
previous year. Improvement was seen in both commercial and public
sectors that their tumover increased by HK$157.1 million, or 30.2% and
HK$13.7 million or 2.3% respectively in comparison to the prior year.

Profit for the year was HK$53.6 million, higher by HK$9.1 milion from last
year and representing a growth of 20.4%. Profit for the fourth quarter was
HK$23.7 million, lower than the corresponding quarter in FYO6 by HK$1.3
million; the difference was the result of the reversal of revaluation decrease
on leasehold land and buildings previously recognized as an expense in
the amount of HK$4.2 million in FYOB. The improvement in profits for
FYQ7 was attributed to the growth in infrastructure system sales resulting
from additional significant infrastructure system upgrades and
enhancements, particularly in the finance, transportation and government
sectors. Also contributed to this year's performance was the growth in
solution and services projects and the sustained growth in the managed
service business.

The Group had net cash of HK$343.1 million, a decrease of HK$25.2
million from 31st March, 2006, with no bank borrowings, and a working
capital ratio of 1.87:1. The decrease in cash was mainly due to the
purchase of equipment to fulfill additional outsourcing services
requirements. Capital expenditure on equipment was HK$76.9 million for
the full year which was HK$46.2 million more as compared to FYOB.

ERALERE
Managing Director's Statement

EEENWR DN

P E 3

SEEHETR1,275,000, oooi%ﬁ~;‘:*£¢iﬂw 5.5% e
“ETHMIRFREENEE 2 % FE58//387,5600,00078
R ;ﬁﬂmiﬁilﬂ—ﬁgtﬂw 1.7% ° EmmiHE
BRBRBYRBELLEF EADR16.1%K14.1% %
846,600,000/ 7T 2 428,400,000/ 7T WiE = ZZ+8f
ERAF S 44 3£ 7866.49% K33.6% °

BERANEREHERE N A FEEEERS3.2% &
46.8% » MEFRABAT 2%K52.8% RN EHIESE
BHRIGR  HEEB D RIEEFILIN157,100,000%
TLEK30.2% 513,700,000/ 7T 82.3%

AN FE % F A53,600,00078 7T B ZFF 45 119,100,000/
TT 3 EF20.4% o BRI A23,700,000/4 7T B
ZETAWBEEARZEERA,800,00078 7T 2= 5
RERZZETAVMRFEREBIERAMZ 2 HE
b MIETFIRE4,200,0008 L — BT IR FE 5=
HERAARESH B RBNERBNAREER

GHBRIRAIER RS UBEEZREEEERATHC
MI\ BRI EIE B RIS SR R EE ARG E
BREIS RIS REENEBRRIEE.

REEEBEH 343,100,000 TR S FRE BR_TEZR
F= f=+—R[4 25,200,000/ 0 IMERITIEE T
BEASERA1871 - RERMPEERBERELR
BHENNRBEER - 2FRXEBEARLZ A
76,900,000/ 7T =T} BB S E 45 1146,200,000
P&ITe
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ERALIERE
Managing Director’'s Statement

Business Review

[T infrastructure business

This year, we saw satisfactory growth in [T infrastructure projects. Many IT
infrastructure system upgrade and enhancement projects were rolled out
in both public and private sectors. Of note was an e-government
infrastructure enhancement project in which we provide and build a
centralized and secured infrastructure for government bureaus and
departments’ e-services to ride on. This multi-platiorm integration project
allows hosting of dynamic internet content and integration of different
application systems. On commercial side, the positive economic condition
is conducive to expansion in terms of business and geographical reach,
bringing corresponding demand for back-end T support and
infrastructure. During the year, we secured several multi-million dollars
orders from various banks and financial institutions to provide enterprise
storage systems, servers and other [T infrastructure and related services
to support their business in Hong Kong and mainland China.

ES o]

BRI EERES

REE B ERRRERER ESS ARERIE R
TLE R NERBIEITRTZ BB ER RS TR K
RAER AP ESIEONEFETERIEAIER &
FIERZE B i K2 7 — B R e e 2 ) E R IR
& BRI ETFRBEA-IIRE RENF A L
HEREEMEARTREATRNERRG-ERETH
RIFEVEERFAN R RHERER St B ESE 1t
i {5 B AR S R R B AT AR FEIE - A
B BARZERTREREERSEESRTETN
B ANSRHECERTERS MR MEGERMRE
& AR IR A S R SR B R E R e %5

The Group will seek to improve the

skill set of its employees
through training and certification in different expert areas,

enabling it to move up the value chain.

FEESB NN EHETHEE

BB BT HNERIEI K

REREEEEEAS  BURARKRGHNERE -

Solution and services business

This year also saw an increasing trend of customers demanding one-
stop-shop solutions, which was in line with our stated strategy of
deepening our penetration in major accounts. Being vendor neutral and
providing a wide range of products and service offerings with our
established vendor network and technical expertise, we are able to deliver
multiple elements in a single project including hardware, software,
applications development, implementation and installation services,
maintenance and support, training, update and enhancement services,
etc. providing end-to-end solution to the customers. During FYO7, the

BERTT R IRIEETE

SN B E— I RAR D ROFBRITA g & 83K
FIFAIE T B P INRE AR NRREIRN 1F AT
SRR SB BRI B B A LB R AE
RE—FIER MRS HAREANE-HEFITA
SRR PINRELE E i R Bt R 2R RTE
HER IR HI BRI IRG S Hm AR PR
—UEH PR T RN - ET LM REE ARERUSE
TEEHETNER ATRNEN REBETRIBRHE
FIENFOR T R HP MR EEB TEETTHE L
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Managing Director's Statement

Group secured a number of multi-milions dollars projects to provide tailor- AR EANEM T EHEATHNSERAL LRI TR
made solutions to various government and quasi-government BB R B R AR BRATT 22 TH B HEE

organizations. Of which, two contracts of over 10 millions in value will be

for 5-6 years supporting thousands of end users, underlining our

capability to deliver long term and large scale solution projects.

Other major projects include contracts awarded under Standing Offer HthxZ2HE B EEBFRERNREELEEMNMHRE
Agreement for Quality Professional Services with the HKSAR where we ¥R E B 1% (Standing Offer Agreement for Quality
provided system analysis and design, system implementation and Professional Services) M FIHIREIE 4 It Bif A
integration, and/or maintenance and support services for an electronic SEEHIENBRATR (NEFXHER R B
document management system, intemet portals and web content AP REENAEETA SRERRFRAS
management platforms, a financial management system and a human BREERR) RUREGON RS ZRRAEHBRES

resources management system. This work portfolio was further enriched N/ SRS K IR BRTS < W S RIS ENZETINAE
in the fourth quarter to include electronic leave application and processing  BREBRBHRBRG EFREESZ R —(@HE X5
system, electronic services system and a survey system.

As SWIFT's only accredited partner in Hong Kong, the Group received VERSWIFTR BB — R RIEZ M NEEREN
service orders from various banks in Hong Kong in the fourth quarter to FERNEBIUSZHRITHRGE UK TS LF
implement the SWIFTNet Phase 2 migration before the deadline at the T AR A1 ERITEHESWIFTNet 2 — X ER 8

end of May 2007. The successful and timely completion of the migration BB IR - RERTHKER TIERERMEENR
was a testimony to our capability to provide quality services against tight SRR R MRHEE RS- RPN ARPIZ HRI TR
timeframe. We also provided similar services to the banks in Macau. HEBRS-

Moreover, with more IT security incident detected and reported in recent UEAN BEET F IR MIEE ZEARHR L E M FLE

years, there has been an increase in security awareness and requirement R R EIBRIRE B R F KN 058  h AAREE
among private and public organizations, which has also brought ample RERFE-R_TT+F= A BRMOINEFELOAE—EA
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business opportunities to the Group. In March 2007, we secured a
contract to provide an identity management solution for an organization in
the public sector to simplify user administration process while meeting the
security audit purposes. In the same month, we provided a security
management framework and security assessment service for an
educational institution to address similar concems.

Meanaged services

Another objective of the Group was to strengthen its recurring income
base, thus reinforcing our ability to deliver sustainable results. With the
award of two three-year outsourcing contracts from Cathay Pacific
Alrways in late FYOB8, FYO7 was the year of service delivery, of transitioning
and of our cultivating relationship and leaming from this industry leader in
order to provide better services. In these largest outsourcing contracts,
we had a professional team of full time staff working on-site, providing
round-the-clock infrastructure and application server management, as well
as deskside services for over 16,000 users. Other major customers in the
area of managed services included Airport Authority, Leisure and Cultural
Services Department, Securities and Futures Commission and a
disciplinary govemment department for whom the Group have continued
to service during FYO7.

Overseas business

Qutside Hong Kong, the tumover from overseas business for FYO7 was
HK$95.6 million, an increase of 37.7% as compared with FYO6, and
represents 7.5% of the Group's annual turnover.

The Group continued to benefit from the buoyant gaming industry in
Macau. During the review period, we have achieved good progress in the
sales performance of gaming industry with us now serving two out of the
six major players in the sector. We have provided different tailor made
gaming related applications and enterprise business solutions to enhance
their operations and business performance. Major business solutions
included a time and attendance system for a casino player with about
8,000 staff and the implementation of a data back up solution.

In mainland China, our subsidiary in Guangzhou has started to capture
business opportunities derived from our Hong Kong customers, including
IT infrastructure project from a leading intermational bank, support services
for the computing facilities of a worldwide insurance company and
business intelligence and middlieware solutions to a well-known beverage
manufacturer. Across the strait in Taiwan, we gained further access to
local market and delivered library solution and related services to
customer from the public sector.

EREBRHIOEERAN R UBLERETHER
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IR AR LR G IR AT R AR O 25k
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SMIER) BAIRE — 2B EEROAERL TER
#83816,000% APRHE RN R M B ER LRI
EIRGME M AR SR A EXE IR RSB
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Outlook and Prospects

In FY08 and onwards, the Group will continue to focus on its major
accounts and existing customer base through offering wider scope of
services and expanding geographical support from Hong Kong to Greater
China. Based on our success in winning the Cathay Pacific contracts, we
will further explore new outsourcing opportunities in Hong Kong and
capture repeated large-sized service contracts.

In terms of growth outside Hong Kong, we have established overseas
subsidiaries in Guangzhou, China and Taiwan respectively. To strengthen
our presence, the Group is looking to expand further in mainland China
through acquisitions of high-potential local players. In realizing our goal for
expansion, we will leverage our local capabilities by extending our strong
vendor relationship and solid customer base to Greater China. We will
also continue to grow and refine the services and solutions business to
make Hong Kong a centre of excellence whose experience and expertise
be repeatable in our overseas business.

The Group will also seek to improve the skill set of its employees, not only
expanding its skilled workforce, but also developing specialists through
training and certification in different expert areas, enabling it to move up
the value chain.

With the above initiatives being implemented, the outlook for the Group
remains positive.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group's total assets of HK$892.5 million
were financed by current liabilities of HK$349.1 million, deferred taxation
of HK$19.4 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$524.0 million. The
Group had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.87:1.

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group had an aggregate composite banking
facilities from banks of approximately HK$96.9 million of which HK$20.4
million was utilized (31st March, 2006: HK$16.6 million). The Group’s
gearing ratio was zero (31st March, 2006: zero) as at 31st March, 2007.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with intemally generated
resources and crediit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available
for the Group include trust receipt loans, overdrafts and term loans. The
interest rates of most of these will be fixed by reference to the respective
countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits will be mainly in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars (‘US dollars”).

ERALERE
Managing Director's Statement
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly eams revenue and incurs costs in US dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the Group will continue to be
minimal as long as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region to link the Hong Kong dollars to the US
dollars remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates, and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was
applied during the year ended 31st March, 2007.

Contingent Liabilities

The amount utilized against banking facilities and goods supplied as at
31st March, 2007 which was secured by the corporate guarantee
amounted to approximately HK$96.9 million. The performance bond
issued by the Group to customers as security of contract was
approximately HK$20.4 milion as at 31st March, 2007.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest customers and single largest customer of
the Group accounted for approximately 17.9% and 6.1%, respectively, of
the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 53.1% and 15.0%,
respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group, excluding its associates, employed
1,266 permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan,
mainland China and Thailand. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, working experience and the prevailing market
conditions. Bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance, medical
coverage and share options scheme.

SN LB
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 24th
August, 2007 to 28th August, 2007, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the final
and special dividends and the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's registrars, Tengis Limited at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 23rd August, 2007. The dividend warrants will be
despatched on or before 11th September, 2007.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's
listed securties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the review of the
audited annual results.

By Order of the Board
LAI Yam Ting

Meanaging Director

Hong Kong, 21st June, 2007
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Fpisodes of the year

Mr. Leo Lam, General Manager of ELM, the Group’s subsidiary,
and Fred Yim, Senior TQM Consultant of ASL, receiving
ISO 9001:2000 quality certification from the HKQAA.

ASL was invited to deliver a keynote session on knowledge SEMBEATRMMNERAKENER R BB R T RnE E1EE
management at Oracle’s major technology event. BRI S EERESREREBBEER 1ISO 9001:2000 HEE
BB ZSREEN Oracle Rk 83 R AR BB X E A BEE

Icie

Technology Summit 2007

ASL sponsored Knowledge Management Summit in Asia ASL was proudly selected to be featured in a news program of
Pacific, a regional significant industry event organized by ETTV, a Taiwan TV channel. The theme of the program was to
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. discuss the development of Hong Kong's [T industry.
BBHERGEYTANFETRES (—EHEARIASBINYN BIERKFRSEER A —RRERNEHA 2BFEXS
wEMHEZEES) - B ERAREEEAR R ENER-

16
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Episodes of the year

Representatives from the Hong Kong Examinations and ASL updated the latest development of Service-Oriented
Assessment Authority and ASL taking photos at the Onscreen Architecture to customers at a luncheon jointly organized with
Marking System contract signing ceremony. Sun Microsystems.
EREARIRREBDEGNRERREFIEERZNEN  BPEREXHAGERSHTERS MELNARESEMERE
AR BT R

ASL Guangzhou participated in 2006 China (Guangzhou) ASL was awarded the “Top Selling Direct Partner — Content

Intemational [T week and seized the opportunity to introduce its Management” by EMC for its outstanding sales performance
services to local customers. achieved in 20006.

BERFGHEMNARLZE2006F E (BM) BR{ESEXERE" B FMEEMCREE [EEEHERH — NBEBER]
Ut e mE R P T AR H R BRI R ERN ST RFEUNHERR-
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

BEEF
HONG KONG CUSTOMER

| GOVERNMENT B fF

BHEE
SCOPE OF WORK

A quasi-government organization
— (BB HE

Provision of server consolidation with 3-year 5 x 8 maintenance support
services, training, and 3-year 7 x 24 hardware support service
RERARBSEAR=FHA/VNEHEERS BHIUR=FtA-+N
/N ST AR AR TS

Civil Service Bureau

RIEREBR

System maintenance and support of the Electronic Leave Application and
Processing System
REFRIBERIPERGREFRGRE MR

Hong Kong Examinations and
Assessment Authority
EEEARZE

Implementation of Onscreen Marking System project
BT 16 EZMIER

Leisure and Cultural Services
Department
FRER UL EBE

System analysis and design, system implementation and integration, and
system maintenance and support services of the Human Resources
Management Information System
RANBREBEARGIRE RGN R FER REBA U RERR
BN IEIRS

Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer
BN EMEHR RN E

Provision of a centralized and secured infrastructure for Bureaus/
Departments to host Intemet content and integrate application

systems developed on diversified platforms

RBIDRER,SFREP R RZ2OEMRER BIEGFFLBENE &
BAETRETABERRER

Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer
B EMEHRRE RN E

Provision of Web content management system for
various government departments
REEBAEBPIREREAREER RS

Transport Department
BRE

System analysis and design, system implementation and integration and
system maintenance and support services for the re-provision of electronic
services

REREFRBIBERGONRE ERBEHBRES URRGREMIE
R

Various government departments
Z AR ERPT

Supply, delivery, installation, commissioning, maintenance and other related
senvices of network products
HEMRER BEXE 28 58 REREMBBRS

Various government departments
&R ERPT

Supply, delivery, installation, commissioning, maintenance and other related
services of server systems
HERRSZES BEXE 5 A RELEAMEERS
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BEBEF
HONG KONG CUSTOMER

| EDUCATION ¥ &

RERNMEZERZAH

Major Contracts Secured in the Year

BHEE
SCOPE OF WORK

65 primary and secondary schools
NTREEFRNE

Provision of technical support specialists to perform daily IT operations and
support services

REFIEERXAB A BT HEEMREER SRR

The University of Hong Kong
ECN

Notebook computer programme for student, staff and alumni
REE BIMRREGEREFREM

| BANKING & FINANCE $R{T R &/

One of the world's largest banking and
financial services organizations
EHEAMIRTT RS BARGHE ~ —

Sun hardware & accessories for the Global Banking System

Provision of security equipments and 7 x 24 onsite maintenance service
BIRIRIRTT R IR Sun B 1 R AR 35

A FURE 20 R B H /N EPIEEIRTE

Over 60 banks in Hong Kong
RN B2 IRTT

Provision of SWIFT professional services
RHESWIFTE Z RS

Wing Lung Bank
IKFEIRTT

Provision of enterprise server and system monitoring software for treasury
trading system
RETER S FZ R P ERAIRE R R G air it

| TRANSPORTATION i

Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
FMZEER AT

Crew Control System upgrade

RTHAR BRI R

MTR Corporation Limited
B R A A

Provision of Sun server for Automatic Fare Collection System
REBE ZFIRMHSun R ARES

Orient Overseas Container Line Limited
RABINEEMERR AR

Provision of highly available clustering solution
RESITAMRERR
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RERNMEZEEAH

Major Contracts Secured Iin the Year

BREF
HONG KONG CUSTOMER

| GENERAL COMMERCE &

BHEE
SCOPE OF WORK

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
BEREEEBRNT]

Provision of Customer Relationship Management System for enhancing
customer services operations and customer satisfaction
RUEFPHREERFIEARPRBEEREPMEE

One of the largest listed conglomerates based
in Hong Kong
NEBREMR FTRARBE S TR —

Implementation of business intelligence solution with 7 x 24 onsite
support service
EEr a0 & MR B H I/ EPIR IR IR

One of the world's largest circular knitted
fabric manufacturers
HEREARWE ST EER 2 —

Provision of business inteligence solution
REEEERETR

BINEF
OVERSEAS CUSTOMER

Macau 29
Macau Chinese Bank Limited
SRPTEE AGRTT

SWIFTNet implementation and upgrade project
Rt 2 R FHARSWIFTNetAR

One of the top five gaming and entertainment
operators in Macau
RPN K 2 RIRGEEER 2 —

Provision of Time and Attendance System, systems integration
and customization services
RELEREDRG ZREE KE 5 TERE

Mainland China B X fZ
A worldwide insurance service company
—MRRBRBE QA

Provide support services for computing facilities for its 12 sites
in Guangzhou
RATREMNS+ —ERS SR M E MR B R

A leading intemational bank

Provision of comprehensive [T infrastructure to the bank’s offices across

—EERHBRIRTT Mainland China

RIBITRHRBERENZ @R FER 2 HEARHRER
Taiwan &
The Intellectual Property Office Ministry of Provision of maintenance and operation support services for
Economic Affairs (TIPO) TIPO's library automation system
KEREEMER RTPOE &R B Bk RFtiR 4 & SOB (R AR TS

Thailand Z=E

Bank for Agriculture and Agricultural Cooperatives

REREMEEAIELRT

Provision of SAN solution

RERFREPEE TR
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Profile of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Mr. LAl Yam Ting BEEXE
Managing Director of the Company AR a2 EFEGIE
- Aged 54 —HFER TR
— Graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a —R—NERFEERNEEFLAS HHEL (BE)
Bachelor of Science degree (Honours) in 1976 B2y

— General Manager of Hong Kong Operations of the Group from
1991 to 2002

— Joined the Group in 1976 and appointed as director of the
Company in 1997

—R-NN—FE-_ZZ_FRAEE BEEHR
IR

—R—NERFNEREER R - NEFERER
KRRz ES

Mr. LAU Ming Chi, Edward

Finance and Administration Controller and

Company Secretary of the Company

— Aged 44

— Graduated from Lingnan College (now known as Lingnan
University) with a Honours Diploma in Accountancy in 1984

— Associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

— Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom

— Joined the Group in 1996 and appointed as director of the
Company in 1997

BlRERE
AR A2 BT AR B AR A AR &
— BRFI TR

— RN/ \MEEEREFER RRERAR) K
SR RERER

—BEGHMAE 288

—REFFOREHAGZERER

—R=ANARFNBEREB RN NEFERER
KRRz ES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHITESE
Mr. Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH 5t 4
Chairman of the Company ARalZ2EE
— Aged 69 —BERTNR

— Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Marketing Institute of Singapore

— Independent non-executive director of CSA Holdings Ltd (CSA), the
immediate holding company of the Group*

— Chairman of CSA Group since 1979*

Non-independent non-executive director of Computer Systems

Advisers (M) Bernad (CSAM), a Malaysia subsidiary of CSA listed

on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange

— Appointed as director of CSA Group in 1974* and appointed as
director of the Company in 1997

— R MR AT S SR R A ® M IR 5 S
ZAREE

— RNEE 7 HIEERL A 5ICSA Holdings Ltd (CSA) 2 18
SIEITES

—R—NENFRACAEBZERF"

—CSARERATE—HEB AR Computer Systems
Advisers (M) Bernad (CSAM) Z 3EBFENITE S 7%
RENEREESFZHF LW

—RA—NENERZTACSAEEZEE RN —NLA
TFRZERARBZES
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Profile of Directors

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued) EHITEE @)
Mr. KUO Chi Yung, Peter REMELE
Deputy Chairman of the Company RRE]ZBIFE
— Aged 62 —BENT IR
— Graduated from Ohio University, USA with a Bachelor of Science —R—NAANFEEREZERZBAZ BEEELR
degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1968 NEB+Ef

— Non-independent non-executive director of CSA*
— Joined the Group in 1974 and appointed as director of the
Company in 1997

—CSAZ B IEHITE SR
—R—htOENEREERR - NN CFERER
RRBIZEE

Mr. MOO Kwee Chong, Johnny

— Aged 67

— Graduated from Melbourne University, Australia with a Bachelor of
Electronic Engineering (Honours) degree in 1961

— Founding member of CSA Group in 1970

— Non-independent non-executive director of CSA*

Non-independent non-executive director of CSAM
— Founding member of the Group in 1973 and appointed as director
of the Company in 1997

BESXE

—BERTER

—R-AR—FRERBENEAAARE HEEFTE
B(REB)BLBM

—R—NEZFAIPCSALHE

—CSAZ B IERITE SR

—CSAMZ SEEL FFRITE SR

—R—hE=FARAEEER - NN LFEERER
RRBIZEE

Ms. TAN Suan Kheng, Esther

(Resigned on 30th June, 2006)

— Aged 50

— Graduated from the University of Singapore with a Bachelor of
Accountancy degree in 1979

— Member of Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Singapore

— Joined CSA Group in 1982

— Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of CSA Group
until 30th June, 2006

— Appointed as director of the Company in 2001

BIRLZ L

(R=FENFNA=+HEE)

—BERTR

— R NENFRERFINEAR A ELT2M

—HiEEgtire g8

—R—AN\ZFNECSA%KH

—CSARBZ KB BRERNAMEEE_TTX
FRA=+H

— R -FRLEBARFRZER

Mr. George Finlay BELL

— Aged 54

— Graduated from the Durham University Business School and the
University of Newcastle upon Tyne, both located in the United
Kingdom, with a Master of Business Management degree and a
Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering degree respectively

— President of Asia Group of Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC),
the ultimate holding company of the Group

— Joined CSC Group in 1998

— Director of CSC Computer Sciences Interational Inc. (CSl) and
CSA, holding companies of the Group

— Non-independent non-executive director of CSAM

— Appointed as director of the Company in 2005

George Finlay BELLE4E

—HEA TR

— EENEE R KB 20 R EEARERE 55
BHERESEET B IR TES 20

—RNEEz HRITER AR Computer Sciences
Corporation (CSC)z ge & 48%,

—R—ANANFEMBACSCER

— ZREE AR A FICSC Computer Sciences Intemational
Inc. (CS)RCSAZ E

—CSAMZ 3B IERITE S

—R-TERFREEERARRCES
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Profile of Directors

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued) EHITESE )
Mr. Darren John COLLINS Darren John COLLINS %4
— Aged 38 = AN

— Graduated from the University of New South Wales with a Bachelor
of Commerce

— Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
(ICAA)

— Vice-president, Finance, Asia, CSC

— Joined CSC Group in 1997

— Director of CSA

— Non-independent non-executive director of CSAM

— Appointed as alterate director of the Company in 2004

— Ceased as altemate director and appointed as director in 2006

—RENNERBIAR SERERLT BN

—BRMNSFEIAECE8

—CSCoM B g Rl

—R—ANEFIMNBECSCEHE

—CSAZES

—CSAMZIFB IFITE S

—R-ETNEREARARRZBIES

—R-ETREIBECEEEZT N ERTREART]
ZE=%

Mr. WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth

— Aged 60

— Graduated from Southemn llinois University and Fu-Jen University
with a Master of Computer Sciences degree and a Bachelor of
History degree respectively

— Vice-president and General Manager, China group of CSC

— First joined CSC Group in 1991

— Appointed as director of the Company in 2006

WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth 5t &£

—REFENTER

—2EREFAAEAZRECAZ HRIRBEEMEE
BT REL B2

—CSCz # B Rl £k K e

—R—NN—FEENBRCSCEE

—RIETRFREERARFIZES

Mr. Andrew John ANKER

— Aged 39

— Vice-president, Managed Services, Asia, CSC
— Joined CSC Group in 1995

— Appointed as director of the Company in 2006

Andrew John ANKER %t 4%
—RE=1+Np

— CSCapillm &1 RIS EIEE
—R—ANAFMEACSCEE
—RIETRNFREERARFIZES

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED EEIZLKEEERAT  Annua Report 2007 F#

23



24

EEMEN

Profile of Directors

— Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales

— Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

— Former partner of the assurance and business advisory services
division of an intermational accounting firm

— Appointed as director of the Company in 2004

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIEHITES
Mr. CHEUNG Man, Stephen R K%
— Aged 62 —BFESTIR

— RREERBIS TS Ag 2 EREE

—BEGNAGZEREE

— RE-BRMEE TR T 2B R RS
MzABA

RN FRZERARAZESR

Mr. HON Sheung Tin, Peter

— Aged 66

Practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1970
Partner of Hon & Co.

Notary public

Appointed as director of the Company in 1997

BHEERE

A A

— B NETFRREBHEEM
—EEAEMEZARA

AN

— RN FREEREARRZES

Mr. LI King Hang, Richard

— Aged 63

— Graduated from Indiana University, USA with a Master of Science
degree in 1968

Former fellow member of the Institute of Data Processing

Management (UK)
— Distinguished Fellow of the Hong Kong Computer Society

Life member of the Australian Computer Society

— Former Director of the Office of Information Technology Services of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

— Appointed as director of the Company in 1997

FRERE

—BERT=5R

—R—NAANFRERER M LIAR R ERE
TEfI

—HIBMBREESE (RE) cEXE8

—EREHEekt

—BNEKBEKAGE

—REEBBRIABEANRERR

— RN FREEREARRZES

* CSA Holdings Ltd (CSA) was privatised and became a wholly owned subsidiary

of Computer Sciences Corporation during FY06; the directors’ CSA
chairmanship (if any) and directorship ceased after the privatisation.

* REEBETNBIKFE CSA Holdings Ltd (CSA) R E1E- A
X AComputer Sciences Corporation Z £ A M E A &) T
FBIEE EFETBITRCSAZ T ER (10F) REFR-
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Corporate Govemance Report

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to
the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate govemance practices are based on the
principles (“Principles”’) and code provisions (“‘Code Provisions”) as set out
in the Code on Corporate Govemance Practices (‘CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (*Stock Exchange”) (“Listing
Rules”). The Company has complied with most of the Code Provisions
save for deviation from the Code Provision in respect of Code Provision
A.4.1, details of which are explained below. The Company regularly
reviews its corporate govemance practices to ensure that these continue
to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors
(“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarized as follows:

Responsibilities

The Company has formalized and adopted the written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans
with a view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to
capital and overall corporate structure, intermal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities (Continued)

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Managing Director (who is also the chief
executive officer within the meaning of the CG Code) and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Managing Director and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfiling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Yam Ting

(Managing Director and Member of Management Committee)
Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward

(Finance & Administration Controller, Company Secretary and Member

of Management Committee)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah
(Chairman of the Board and Member of Audit Committee)
Mr. Kuo Chi Yung, Peter
(Deputy Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny
Mr. George Finlay Bell
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Management Committee)
Mr. Darren John Collins
(Member of Management Committee)
Mr. Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth
Mr. Andrew John Anker
(appointed on 23rd August, 2000)

BE (&)
REEBERAT SEE—RAMNEESIREENR AT
RARBZ A EBABLIEEXER

RABIZ BEEE TRMEETENRIR T EFAK
2 (BRI R EATRI ZER M AITRAER) REk
EEE-ZIRBE R TIFE e LS ABER
ETEAEARZRASERGEES A

EEQRCERECENRSRER B IR ABTT
HBE-

AR
B 7 ARCRIRALRERTE WEBUBIDRER N
AREBHR

ARBZBEFEEGHUATEREK:

HiITEE
EEELE
(EEREEREEZEENKE)
ElF e
(MR ERITHARE RARAWEREERBENE)

HHMITEE

Allen Joseph Pathmarajah %t 4
(BEEgEEREREZEEGNE)

FH IR
(BE=galxR)

TEERAE

George Finlay Bellft £
(FHEZEESREEZEEERF)

Darren John Collins%t 4
(BEEEEEKE)

Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth%t 4

Andrew John Anker5t &
(RZZEZERFNRZT=ZHEM)
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Composition (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen
(Chaiman of Audit Committee and Memiber of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter
(Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Li King Hang, Richard
(Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Ms. Tan Suan Kheng, Esther resigned as non-executive director of the
Company on 30th June, 2006.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 March, 2007, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr. Li King Hang, Richard had served as
independent non-executive directors of the Company for more than nine
years. They are neither connected with any connected persons of the
Group nor do they have any material interest in the Group's business
activities. The Board considers that their length of tenure will not impair
their independence. The Company has received written annual
confirmation from Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr. Li King Hang,
Richard of their independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers them to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. Mr. Li King
Hang, Richard will offer himself for re-election in accordance with the
Company's Bye-laws and by a separate resolution at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Board recommended the proposal for Mr. Li
King Hang, Richard's re-election as an independent non-executive
director.

The Company also has received written annual confirmation from Mr.
Cheung Man, Stephen, independent non-executive director, of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers him to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

ft\% B /CI iﬁli
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Corporate Governance Report

Composition (Continued)

The non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
bring a wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and
independent judgement to the Board. Through active participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors make
various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of directors.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all directors (including those appointed for a specific term or
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fil a casual
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. Every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

In order to ensure full compliance of the Company’s Bye-laws with Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, the Company amended its Bye-laws in
its 2006 annual general meeting to make all directors subject to retirement
by rotation once every three years and any new director appointed to fill a
causal vacancy or as additional director shall be subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors (Continued)
The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Andrew John Anker
who has been appointed as non-executive director of the Company
during the year, shall retire and being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the first general meeting after the appointment (i.e. the forthcoming annual
general meeting). In addition, Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah, Mr. Kuo Chi
Yung, Peter, Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen and Mr. Li King Hang, Richard
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company's circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming annual
general meeting contains detailed information of the directors standing for
re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and
professional development to directors whenever necessary. During the
year, the Company organized training providing an update on the
regulatory framework in Hong Kong and role of company director and
board practices to all directors. The training was conducted by The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors.

EREBRRE
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Board and Committee Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings
as and when required. Six Board meetings were held during the year.

The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of the
Board, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 March, 2007 is set out below:

EZEeRZEEEE

BHERBREELEAL
EZgTFRTNAERSE WNEFERRITREIN
BH-FRAERITNRESFEGH-

RHE-ZZLF-A=T-RHIFER SEERE
=2 FHNRE e RERZE SR ZER HF s
SR

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship
RESEHALE BETEERE

Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEHE EEg FMEES EREEY
Executive Directors HITES
Lai Yam Ting FBEE 6/6 N/A N/A
NE A E A
Lau Ming Chi, Edward BIsaE 6/6 N/A N/A
E A iE A
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah Allen Joseph Pathmarajah 6/6 N/A 4/4
NE A
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter EE 6/6 N/A N/A
E A iE A
Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny US=¢=! 5/6 N/A N/A
NE A E A
Tan Suan Kneng, Esther FR 1132 1/1 N/A N/A
(resigned on 30th June, 2006) (RZZEARFANA=Z+HHEHD) A A
George Finlay Bell George Finlay Bell 6/6 2/2 N/A
E A
Darren John Collins Darren John Collins 6/6 N/A N/A
E A iE A
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 5/6 N/A N/A
NE A E A
Andrew John Anker Andrew John Anker N/A N/A
(appointed on 23rd August, 2006) (RZZZEXFNAZ+=AZE) 3/4 N3 A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Cheung Man, Stephen KX 6/6 2/2 4/4
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter FEIEH 6/6 2/2 4/4
Li King Hang, Richard R 6/6 2/2 4/4
Practices and Conduct of Meetings BEEHRER
Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum THEFSERNBITERANBEARE WEELES
attendance of directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to HESH BRI EESER 2B INAERT

all directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

ML UERETHAESR-ERAMEFGRES
SEH —HERLABBA-
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Board and Committee Meetings (Continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company's Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director are held by Mr.
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah and Mr. Lai Yam Ting respectively. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice. With the support of the senior management, the Chairman is
also responsible for ensuring that the directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the
Company's day-to-day management and operations. The Managing
Director is also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating
the organizational structure, control systems and interal procedures and
processes for the Board's approval.
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The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Management Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

Mr. George Finlay Bell and all the three independent non-executive
directors are the members of the Remuneration Committee and Mr.
George Finlay Bell is the chairman of the Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of all directors and the senior management
and share options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing
the remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of all directors and the senior management and
other related matters. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and

remuneration packages.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31st March, 2007. The works performed included the following:

(@)  Toreview the remuneration policy of directors.

(o)  Toreview and approve an increase in executive directors’
remuneration package.

(c)  Toreview and recommend an increase in non-executive directors’
and independent non-executive directors’ remuneration package.

(d)  To approve cancellation and grant of share options.

(e)  Toreview the existing insurance coverage for directors’ and officers’
liabilities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah and the
three independent non-executive directors (including one independent
non-executive director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise)
and Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen is the chairman of the Committee. None
of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing extemal auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  Toreview the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant,
internal auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to
the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  Toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 March,

2007. The works performed including the following:

(&)  To review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures.

(o)  Toreview the reports from the external auditors, management letters
and management response.

(c) Toapprove the selection criteria in appointing the external auditors.

(d)  Torecommend the re-appointment of the external auditors

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concemn.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 March, 2007 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Management Committee

The two executive directors together with Mr. George Finlay Bell and Mr.
Darren John Collins are the members of the Management Committee and
Mr. George Finlay Bell is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and
reviewing the Company's day-to-day operations and financial reporting,
and making recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies
of the Group. The Management Committee meets monthly to discuss the
related issues.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March, 2007.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, quarterly
results, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2007.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors’ Report” on page 50.

The non-audit work performed by the external auditors included the
annual review on connected transactions and the tax compliance
services. The remuneration paid or payable to the external auditors of the
Company In respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 March, 2007 amounted to approximately HK$994,000 and
HK$75,000 respectively.
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The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing and
maintaining interal controls, while the Board and Audit Committee review
the effectiveness of the controls. The internal control system includes a
quarterty representation from senior management in connection with
financial statements and internal control matters, a defined management
structure with limits of authority designed to achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for intermal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Company’s objectives.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of interal
control system of the Group. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company's
Bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll procedures
are included in all circulars to shareholders and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings.

Pall results will be published in accordance with the Listing Rules and
posted on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent Board committee,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders” meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of
the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in
an informative and timely manner.
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To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and
updates on the Company's business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.

On behalf of the Board

LAI Yam Ting
Meanaging Director

Hong Kong, 21st June, 2007
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The principal activities of its associates
and subsidiaries are set out in notes 16 and 32, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 52.

An interim dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share amounting to
HK$8,825,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 6.0 HK cents
per share and a special dividend of 6.0 HK cents per share after
considering the Group's cash position and the needs of business
development. The proposed dividends will be paid to the shareholders on
the register of members on 23rd August, 2007, amounting to
HK$35,300,000, and the remaining profit be retained for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 55 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders at 31st
March, 2007 include contributed surplus and accumulated profits totalling
HK$385,663,000 (FY06: HK$373,273,000).

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders at 31st
March, 2007 include contributed surplus and accumulated profits totalling
HK$90,816,000 (FY06: HK$91,344,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$76,928,000 on

property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors
Lai Yam Ting
Lau Ming Chi, Edward

Non-executive directors
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter
Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny
George Finlay Bell
Darren John Collins
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth
Andrew John Anker
(appointed on 23rd August, 2006)
Tan Suan Kheng, Esther
(resigned on 30th June, 2006)

Independent non-executive directors
Cheung Man, Stephen

Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Li King Hang, Richard
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 99, Mr. Allen Joseph
Pathmarajah, Mr. Kuo Chi Yung, Peter, Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen and
Mr. Li King Hang, Richard will retire by rotation. In addition, Mr. Andrew
John Anker, being non-executive director appointed by the Board during
the year, will hold office only until the first general meeting after the
appointment (i.e. the forthcoming annual general meeting) pursuant to the
Company's bye-laws 102(B). Al retiring directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the period up
to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st March, 2007, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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(a) Shares (@) &%
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate % of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total  shareholding
ARER Bz fAAER iR NRER Hit i RESNEAL
Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting 4,141,621 = = = 4,141,621 1.41%
Holdings Limited REE
BBZHEEERAR
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter 9,271,241 - - - 9,271,241 3.15%
PHE
Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting 1,070,000 - - - 1,070,000 N/A?
(HK.) Limited iy
BEZS (BR) GRAA
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter 2,140,000 - - - 2,140,000 N/A?
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

EEZRHOKREBRE 2 ESE @

(b) Underlying shares (b) HEERMG
Personal Family Corporate
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total
AR ER gz BAER RikiER ARER Hits st
Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting 1,947,000° - - - 1,947,000
Holdings Limited BEE
BOZREEERAR
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 1,436,000° - - - 1,436,000
£l
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter 587,000° - - - 587,000
FEE
Computer Sciences George Finlay Bell 163,633+45 - - - 163,633
Corporation
Darren John Collins 14,63044% - - - 14,630
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 2,630185 - - - 2,630
Andrew John Anker 5429485 - - = 5,429
Notes: Bt & -

1. These shares were non-voting deferred shares.

2. The issued share capital of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
comprise 55,350,000 non-voting deferred shares and 2 ordinary

shares. The 2 ordinary shares are beneficially owned by the Company.

3. Options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company, further details of

which are set out in the section headed “Share Option Schemes”

below.

4. Options to acquire common stock of Computer Sciences Corporation

("CSC).

8 The directors’ options to acquire shares in CSC are remuneration in
their capacities as executives of these related corporations.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st March, 2007, none of the directors

and the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short

positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO

(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
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have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to XAt Z%EEH%Z%ED 2 (IR IR EESTRIZA AN
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; GARRD B RB AT 2 SRR
or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to e notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES BRETE
Detalls of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 26 to RRRIERET S 2 M EFBEH NGRS B WwER W
the consolidated financial statements. FL26 °
The following table discloses movements in the Company's share options RNAT 2 IEBAENFRN 2 EEIAT:
during the year:
Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options
RTERRERHRGTZRE
Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled
At during during during during At Date
1.4.2006 the year the year the year the year 31.3.2007 of grant Exercise
Participants RZBERE REEE REEE REEE REEE  R-ZEtE Rt Exercise period price
6% mA-A R afid h&H hE%  ZA=t-A ERERS R iid|
HkS
A
Directors
Bz
Lai Yam Ting 490,000 - - - - 490,000 2.319% 332001 foZ 232009 090
EEE 245,000 - - - 245,000 19.10.1999 20102001 toZ 19,10.2009 230
245,000 - - - (245,000) 11.2.2000 12.2.2002 0% 11.2.2010 335
196,000 - - - - 196,000 27.7.2001 27.7.2003 0% 26.7.2011 240
412,000 - - - - 412,000 20.11.2002 20.11.2008 0% 19.11.2012 1.34
232,000 = = = = 232,000 6.8.2004 6.8.2000 0% 582014 1.28
248,000 - - - - 248,000 9,6.2006 9,6.2006 0% 862015 198
- 24,000 - - - 124,000 30.6.2006 30,6.2006 o 29.6.2016 1.9%
2,068,000 24,000 - - (245000) 1,947,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BT E
Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options
RIEBRERFRTZRZ
Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled
A during during during during At Date
1.4.2006 the year the year the year the year 31.3.2007 of grant Exercise
Participants RZBERE RAEE REEE RAEE REEE  R-BEtE Rit Exercise period price
so% mA-R i i3 REH REE  =A=t-A ERERS TSR 4|
HKS
v
Directors (Continued)
B2 (9)
Lau Ming Ch, Echward 120,000 - - - - 120,000 19.10.1999 20.10.2001 10 19.10.2009 230
HEs 120,000 - - - (120,000) - 11.2.2000 12.2.2002 102 11.2.2010 33
148,000 - - - - 148,000 27.7.2001 21.7.2003 0% 26.7.2011 240
330,000 - - - - 330,000 20.11.2002 20.11.2003 102 19.11.2012 1.3
140,000 - - - - 140,000 6.8.2004 6.8.2005 t0Z 5.8.2014 1.28
210,000 - - - - 210,000 9.6.2005 9.6.2006 to% 8.6.2015 198
- 428,000 - - - 428,000 19,6.2006 19.6.2007 t0Z 18.6.2016 1%
- 60,000 - - - 60,000 306.2006 30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 19
1,068,000 488,000 - - (120,000) 1,436,000
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter 246,000 - - - - 245,000 1910.1999 20.10.2001 10 19.10.2009 230
JER 245,000 - - - (245,000) - 11.2.2000 12.2.2002 0% 11.2.2010 8189
218,000 - - - - 218,000 27.7.2001 27.7.2003 0% 26.7.2011 240
- 124,000 - - - 124,000 306.2006 30.6.2006 10 29.6.2016 19%
708,000 124,000 - - (245,000) 587,000
Other employees 250,000 - - - - 250,000 231999 3.3.2001 t0F 2.3.2000 090
RhfEE 1,440,000 - - (70,000 - 1,370,000 1910.1999 20.10.2001 10 19.10.2009 230
1,465,000 - - (36,000)  (1365,000) 65,000 11.2.2000 12.2.2002 102 11.2.2010 33
500,000 - - (20,000) (530,000) 40,000 306.2000 1.7.2002 0% 3062010 340
1,706,000 - - (74,000) - 1,632,000 27.7.2001 27.7.2003 0% 26.7.2011 240
1,632,000 - (206,000 ) (24,000) - 1,402,000 20.11.2002 20.11.2003 0% 19.11.2012 1.34
2,092,000 - (172,000 ) (68,000) - 1,852,000 6.8.2004 6.8.2005 t0% 5.8.2014 128
2,430,000 - - (80,000 ) - 2,350,000 9.6.2006 96,2006 toF 8.6.2015 198
- 2,460,000 - - - 2,460,000 19,6.2006 19,6.2007 10Z 18.6.2016 19
- 992,000 - (28,000 ) - 964,000 306.2006 30.6.2006 0% 29.6.2016 19
- 1,204,000 - (48,000 ) - 1,156,000 306.2006 30.6.2007 toZ 29.6.2016 19
11,606,000 4,666,000 (378,000 (447000)  (1,8%,000)  13541,000
TotalA 4k 16,449,000 5,392,000 (378,000 (447000)  (2506000) 17,511,000

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of last grant
was HK$1.94.

RERE A ERIRG 2 KT ER 48T
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with its

EFeRE
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fellow subsidiaries and ultimate holding company which constituted

connected transactions under The Rules Governing the Listing of U

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”):

FERER S (REBZ MRS LR EHRA)

ASL Services CSC Services
Name of company Nature of transactions and Products and Products
DRIEH REME ASLERERER CSCHRE R E M
HK$000 HK$000
THET FET
CSA (PRC) Company Limited Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 104
EiINATE B BRI R E M
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products 68 -
FEINHITE B RS M
Agency Services 13 35
RIERT
CSC Computer Sciences Pte Limited Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 3,356
EIHMNHTE B IR R E
CSC Computer Sciences (HK) Limited Local Qutsourcing Project Services and Products 8 519
BinHNHITE B IR R E m
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products 358 =
FEHMHIE B FRTS KR E m
CSA Automated Pte Limited Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 6,968
EIHMNATE B AR R E
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products 2,256 -
JEHNHIE B BRI KR E M
CSA MSC Sdn Bhd Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 209

IR B BRI R E
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BERS (®
ASL Services CSC Services
Name of company Nature of transactions and Products and Products
DRIER REME ASLIRERER CSCHRE R Em
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET THET
Computer Systems Advisers (M) Berhad Local Qutsourcing Project Senvices and Products 19 2,105
B i oNFITE B AR S E m
CSC Computer Sciences Japan Co. Ltd Local Qutsourcing Project Senvices and Products - 4
EIHMATE B RIS M E
CSC Computer Sciences Taiwan Limited Local Qutsourcing Project Services and Products - 44
B HMATE B RS M E m
Non-Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 435 =
FEEHHNAITE B ARSI 2
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products = 674
FESNFITE B PRA M
Computer Sciences Corporation Non-Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 207 -
FEEMHNAITE B PRI R E
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 836
FESNFITE B AR K E
CSC Computer Sciences (Thailand) Limited Local Qutsourcing Project Services and Products - 23
EIhHMATE B RS M E m
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products 278 102
FESNHITE B AR M 2
Computer Sciences Canada Inc. Local Qutsourcing Project Senvices and Products = 34
EIHMATE B RIS M E
CSC Computer Sciences Limited Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 1,710

Capitalised terms used in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
above shall have the same meanings as those defined in the Company’s
circular dated 8th March, 2006 unless specified otherwise.

FESNHITE B BRTS M EE dn

BVEEL
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of directors
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group. The auditors have reported their factual findings on these
procedures to the board of directors.

All of the independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there are no sufficient
comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements govermning them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2007, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of every
person, other than directors or chief executive of the Company in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

Number of ordinary

EFeRE

Directors’ Report

BERS &)
BHE EMARAIE 14A.38
AR EE 215 ERE
BB MESE

GRE ERGIEAA LR R
BRI PRITE TEBEZIZF %
BERSEFCERER.

B
>
E‘I
?E?%

B IFNITEREBHRER Ll EY

()  EARFBEER—REBEETET

(i) IR AEGRCET N ER AR FHAIEL
8 AEHASEN S MNERNERTFBLE=H

SHIEBLFE = IR IRFOETT )2

(i) IRRERHZ B2 ETETT 5
RFEBIFFEARRBR 2 B ae

FERRK

RETTLF=A=1—H RESRARREBITH
ABFTE FHIAL (AR ﬂé$§k£§ﬁﬂ(/\ﬁﬁ\9\\)
AR Z B 1D S ABRARR 7 G 1R IR 35 5 R AR 15
BIEXVEBFE 2R3 EBAMAR R 2 R TOK B

Percentage of
issued
share capital

Name of shareholder shares of the Company held HEBITIRA Notes
RRER DNEFEZEBERRAEAE 2B Bt aE
Direct Deemed %

interest interest Total

EER AR A &
CSA Holdings Ltd (“CSA") 189,701,896 - 189,701,896 64.49 1

CSC Computer Sciences Intemnational

Inc. (“CSI") 13,730,000 189,701,896 203,431,896 69.15 1
Computer Sciences Corporation (‘CSC”) - 203,431,896 203,431,896 69.15 2
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

1. CSl beneficially owned 100% of CSA and was accordingly deemed to be
interested in 189,701,896 shares of the Company. In addition, CSl owned
directly 13,730,000 shares of the Company.

2. CSC, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, CSl, was deemed to be
interested in 203,431,896 shares of the Company.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st March, 2007, there was no other
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations amounting to HK$102,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st March,
2007 with the Code on Corporate Govemance Practices as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except with respect to Code A.4.1, all
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company's bye-laws.

FERR @)
BaE:

1. CSIEZEACSA 100% % MWRIEHEEARATZ
189,701,896/ AR (A 2 ez o UL N COIE A AR T Z
13,730,000 B% {5

2. CSCEBEZEAHEMBARICSHEBRIER AR Z
203,431,896 %A% (A A HE s

B EXCPrtESN R T F = A=+ — B EE
Hit A+ (RABEZHEBTHRABRIN RART]
Z BRAD AR A0 o A 1R 15 R 5 M I IR B ZEXVER
FoRBH W2 IERAARRIRE 2 TR B

B
AR EZ BHB102,00087Te

BE HEIEE EmES

RER AR RSEAREARGEREE HEsER
AR BER LHRES-

B
EARRZ ATMAIK ARSI T LA I
DRI PIMBE R RE EHR 2 BRI e

EEER
RARRBE-ZZEA+F=A=T—HIFEN—H
Esr LR RIS ARTEUZ KRR EVRTE R T A - HEFE
SPRIEA AR S AR B RBIFITERIIIETIETE
THEZR T HARBARRMARZ R EHESRILE
BT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all
directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 31st March, 2007.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirnation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st March, 2007,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which was established pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, comprising Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen, Mr. Allen
Joseph Pathmarajah, Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr. Li King Hang,
Richard met fourth times in the year. During the meetings, the Audit
Committee has reviewed with the management the connected
transactions, accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
including the review of the audited annual results, unaudited interim and
quarterly results, and discussed various auditing, financial reporting and

internal control matters.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LAl Yam Ting
Meanaging Director

Hong Kong, 21st June, 2007

EFeRE

Directors’ Report
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INdependent Auditors’ Report

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BBRGEEARAF

(incorporated in Bermuada with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated
Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 103, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2007, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

B EBRSREEARALRF
2ERR
(REFZEAMA L2 HRAA])

ZKV%ZEWE%EX%& EO2E10BEME BB RGEEE

AR ([ERR]) REMBAR (G E5E]) 24
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RAZPHRMFARENERITESHBRMER
H A SRRk Lo

EENGEOMBBRAREZER

W] %$oﬁf$ﬁ%}%i§ﬁ§ SR ARG 2 BB
BEENRBECRBED) B2 RERERELL
HEEMAFHIRAFhra M BiRR a5 EFRERT

Bk ERRAR AR A FHFIHRRE R
*HF?ZW*BT - LA AR & M R R N KRR X
SRR Bz EAS R R RAEREE 285K
B RREN TMEHAE 2 & 5Hlate
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NAITER U EREAA VB REAR B TR ER
BARFERERM
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2007 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21st June, 2007

BB RS
Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-FTLF=A=t+ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

2007 2006
—EEtF ZETRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FET FAT
Tumover BERE 5 1,274,979 1,104,239
Cost of goods sold SHERA (766,438) 671,522)
Cost of services rendered AR 2 A (376,438) (315,839)
Other income EAlA 6 16,594 13,929
Selling expenses HEEBMH (52,974) (48,061)
Administrative expenses THER (34,042) (32,139)
Reversal of revaluation decrease on BEIRAIIERSZ 2 HE T
leasehold land and buildings REFEHRE
previously recognised as an expense - 4,218
Finance costs AR 7 7 (230)
Share of results of associates A= NGTE 163 57
Profit before taxation BR# A& A 8 61,837 54,652
Taxation A 11 (8,277) (10,173)
Profit for the year attributable to RATRAFEH AEML BN F
equity holders of the Company 53,560 44,479
Dividends % 2. 12 41,170 35,142
HK cents HK cents
AL Al
Earnings per share BREF| 13
Basic BN 18.21 15.18
Diluted b5 18.10 15.09
Note: Increase in fair value of available-for-sale investments of HK$2,961,000 for fer: EE_TERNE=A=1T—"HILFE HHEKRER
the year ended 31st March, 2006 was credited to investment revaluation SEEERE 2,961,000/ w0 AR AT B €8]
reserve resulting from early adoption of HKAS39 (Amendment) The Fair Value FE305% (KER]) — AT EEBEmMTAREE GG
Option.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

—EELF=R=+—H
At 31st March, 2007

2007 2006
—ETLF —EEREF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FHxT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LIEN GG 14 199,916 152,031
Intangible assets B EE 15 5,283 11,937
Interests in associates BN\ RkERE 16 242 79
Avallable-for-sale investments AMEEERE 17 33,641 22,094
239,082 186,141
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 73~ 18 108,973 77,911
Trade receivables eI E 5508 19 135,919 103,946
Tax recoverable AT EI R TE 4,497 -
Other receivables, deposits and E b JEUGRIA 12 & &
prepayments TEfS5RIE 20 60,871 50,031
Short term bank deposits AR TIE R 21 7,914 100
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 21 335,197 368,220
653,371 600,208
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Trade and bills payables ERESRIERER 22 185,352 127,513
Other payables and accruals H A ERRIE R FEET B A 23 65,810 59,523
Receipts in advance SEE 97,934 98,340
Tax liabilities HIEaE - 3,167
349,096 288,543
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETE 304,275 311,665
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAE
LIABILITIES 543,357 497,806
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBIAE
Deferred taxation IRIEFIIR 24 19,402 10,992
523,955 486,814
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REBEEBRER
Consolidated Balance Sheet

—ET+F=A=+—H
At 31st March, 2007

2007 2006
—EEBLHF ZETRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FaE FExT FAT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E

Share capital [N 25 29,417 29,379
Reserves fEf 494,538 457,435

Equity attributable to equity holders RATIRAFEE ARG A =
of the Company 523,955 486,314

The financial statements on pages 52 to 103 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21st June, 2007 and are
signed on its behalf by:

LAI Yam Ting
BEE
Meanaging Director
EFpsrE

SR ELREI03HERESFTEN —TT+F XA
T ARUERIRER A T ERE:

LAU Ming Chi, Edward
EE
Executive Director
HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In

VAN
N

J/IEL

Y 2B
EquIty

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

Investment  Property Share
Share revaluation revaluation options  Accumu-
Share premium  Special  reserve  reserve Translation  reserve lated
capital Bt reseve  REEf  WEER  reserve BRE profits Total
B HER  REIRE i i ESRE e REEN a5
HKJ000  HKBOO0  HKBOOD  HK$000  HKS000  HKPOO0  HKBOOO  HKBOOO  HK$000
TR TETL TR TiEn TR TR TiEn TiEn TR
1st Aprl, 2005 RZEZREMA-A 29,173 71,564 34,330 576 - 3 2165 329586 467445
Bxchange difference on translaion  EIBHEK B ZR
of overseas operations - - - - - (118) - - (118)
Revaluetion increase of BELHRETEMIEE
leasehold land and buildings - - - 4463 - - - 4,463
Deferred taxation arising on RERREHRET
revaluation of leasehold land fEE ZEREHE
and buldings - - - (781) - - - (781)
Increase in fair value of AEHEREATEEEM
avalable-for-sale investments = = = 2,961 = = = = 2,961
Netincome (expense) recognised  BRRRAHEZ Z FIA
directly in equity (F%) - - - 2,961 3,682 (118) = = 6,525
Profit for the year EERT = = = - - - - 44479 44479
Total recognised income BRALEEARARRS
and expense for the year - - - 2,961 3,682 (118) - 44,479 51,004
Bxercise of share options TieERE 206 2,444 = = = = = = 2,650
Recogntion of equiy-settied DRASENROE
share-based payments PAE:S - - - - - - 857 - 857
Special dividend for Y05 pad ~ EE-_ZERUBEE
KRR . . . . - - (17560)  (17,560)
Final dividend for FY05 paid e il G
RS - - - - - - - (11,708)  (11,706)
Interim olvidendl for FYO paid i e G
hERS = = = = = = (6876)  (5876)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE—TTLF=A=+—ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

Investment  Property Share
Share revaluation revaluation options  Accumu-
Share premium  Special  reserve  reserve Translation  reserve lated
capital Bt reseve  REEf;  WESEHL  reserve B E profits Total
i BER  RHER e fF EBRE BE REER 48
HK000  HK$000  HKE000  HK$000  HKPO00  HKBOOD  HKFO00  HKB000  HK$000
AL ThL TR TR TR TiEn TR TETL TR
At 31st March, 2006 RZZE E=A=1-R 29,379 74,008 34,350 3,537 3,682 (87) 3022  3B8IW 486814
Bxchange difference on tranglation  AEBINEHZEREE
of overseas operations - - - - - 1,469 - - 1,469
Revaluation increase of leasehold ~ HEHHREFEHEE
land and buildings - - - - 12,836 - - - 12,836
Defened taxation arising on RERERE T HRETMEE
revaluation of leasehold land BB
and buildings = = = = (2,246) = = = (2,246)
Increase in falr value of ARHERENTEREN
avalable-for-sale investments = = = 10,951 = = = - 10,651
Netincome recognised rectly  ERMRARZZFHA
in equity - - - 10,661 10,590 1,469 - - 22,610
Proft for the year ERRA - - - = = = = 53,560 53,560
Total recognised income ERALEEARA
for the year - - - 10,661 10,590 1,469 - 53,660 76,170
Exercise of share options T mE 38 458 - - - - - - 496
Recognition of equity-setfied AR EE AR AL
share-based payments PAES - - - - - - 1,645 = 1,645
Special dvidend for FYOB paid KR ST/ HBEE
RS - - - - - - - (17848)  (17648)
Final dividend for FY06 paid EE-ET HHER
AERE = = = = = = - (14702)  (14702)
Interim dividend for FYO7 paid BE-SEHHHER
HERE = = = = = = = (8825)  (882)
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZZt§=B=1-A 20417 74,466 34,350 14,088 14,272 1,382 4667 351,313 523,955
The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the RERZFRIRBRTIER—NNEFA BIFAEER

nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the

group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1997,

RABRNREBEYERSAERAR LMMmETER
FURHE 2 ff 8 A BB &7 2 E{EE AR B ALt

BRI MEMEZHE5/Ee
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Consolidated Cash How Statement

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

2007 2006
—EEtF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT FHT
OPERATING ACTMTIES mEEK
Profit before taxation R A e A 61,837 54,652
Adjustments for: SREER:
Share of results of associates i NG E (163) (57)
Finance costs BhE R A 7 230
Share-based payment expense AR AERY A7 X 1,645 857
Reversal of revaluation decrease on BB SERTHER AR < 2 THE L
leasehold land and buildings previously RiEFHEGRE
recognised as an expense - (4,218)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RERREE 3,428 =
Depreciation and amortisation e RikE 45,018 35,826
Impairment loss on intangible assets B AE 2 RIERE - 4
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWIE - B M2 R
and equipment 187 312
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERPEEEE 926 26
Interest income B A (9,908) (8,047)
Dividend income from available-for-sale RE A ERE ZREMA
investments (2,683) (1,655)
Operating cash flows before movements REt B E RN E AT 2 40 5T
in working capital REmnE 100,294 78,000
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEz (gm ,mi (26,565) 14,567
(ncrease) decrease in trade receivables FENSE 538 (38n) B (33,684) 17,124
Increase in other receivables, deposits H b FEUBR SR 12 & R IE SRIBIE AN
and prepayments (11,561) (11,950)
Increase (decrease) in trade and BN E S REREEE I, (R
bills payables 57,839 (4,838)
Increase in other payables and accruals HAb R BRIA R FERT B R Z N 6,287 11,458
Decrease in receipts in advance TR AR A (406) (12,183)
Cash generated from operations RELEEBHRE 92,204 92,178
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEEFGEE (8,677) (8,292)
Overseas taxation paid EAIEINRIR (1,100) (1,777)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTNVITIES REERBESTFE 82,427 82,109
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-FTLF=A=+ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

2007 2006
—BTLF ZTTREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
INVESTING ACTMITIES REEE
Additions to property, plant and equipment =R YEN S (76,928) (30,707)
Increase in short term bank deposits KRR TAE SRAE N (7,814) (100)
Additions to intangible assets RNEBEE (1,940) (7,184)
Interest received BEUFIE 9,908 8,047
Dividend received from listed securities B ETEHRE 1,687 983
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYIE B KRB ETS
and equipment 10 2,668
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HEEFAEMS - 10
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTMTIES ~ &E8 > B4 % B4 (75,077) (26,383)
FINANCING ACTMITIES A& EE
Interest paid BRFIE 7) (230)
Dividends paid BRRE (41,170) (35,142)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIREMS 496 2,650
Repayment of trust receipt loans BEEFBIEER - (12,985)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTMTIES RETEH 2RSS HBHE (40,681) (45,707)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 (B4) /18 hn (33,331) 10,019
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHzBRERREEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 368,220 358,405
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgEHIE
RATE CHANGES 308 (204)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZBSRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash HERRITERKE 335,197 368,220
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate holding company is CSA Holdings Ltd, a company
incorporated in Singapore and its ultimate holding company is
Computer Sciences Corporation, a public listed company in the
United States of America. The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information on the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The principal activities of its
associates and subsidiaries are set out in notes 16 and 32,
respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of new standards, amendments and interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
which are either effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1st December, 2005, 1st January, 2006 or 1st March, 2006.
The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

Standards, amendments or interpretations issued but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendment or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new standards, amendment or interpretations
will have no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_ZTTHF=A=+—ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BRHNITREBIT 2EBUHRE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 28 @)

(Continued)

Standards, amendments or interpretations issued but not EEMENRERZEA ST RERE (B)

yet effective (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures’ EASFERE 15 (GBI BRAHKE

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures' BB EREERE TR SRMIE FKE

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments? BENTHEER B8R mEnEp

HK(FRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2° & (BB mEE BEMBRELER

RELZE®) REBESY  FoNHEES

HK(FRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded B (BRI 2R EffiRALTELA
Derivatives® REZRE®) —REFN

HK(FRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and &8 (B S mEE Hh EREA R S SR (B
Impairment® REZE®) -REE10%

HK(FRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share &5 (BB S 28 BN RREER
Transactions® REZES) REFENR FoR-£EKER

HX (AZX %h
HK(FRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements’ B4 (BRI R 2E8| PRAGHE & LB
REZEY) —REE12R

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2007 TRZEEF - —ByERn FEMREERC

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009 PRZZTNF— R —Hoz KRR 2 FEHRRERC

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May, 2006 SRZTTRNFRA B ERG FE R AR

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2006 CRIZETRNFAA B ERG 2 FE R AR

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st November, 2006 SRIEFTRNF+—A— B @Hin FEREERC

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2007 Eé:?%fti R—H3z &R 2 FEHRRERC

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008 TRIZET\F—-A—BRERR FEREERC
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for leasehold land and buildings and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securtties on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govemn the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as 1o obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses have
been eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an investment in a
joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of
the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
service provided in the normal course of business, less returns and
allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to buyers
(generally on delivery, satisfactory installation and acceptance) and
the amount of revenue and the costs incurred for the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than maintenance
services, is recognised based on the stage of completion, provided
that the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to
completion can be measured reliably. Stage of completion is
established by reference to the costs incurred to date as compared
to the total costs to be incurred under the transaction. Provision is
made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated

by management.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue on outsourcing contracts is recognised based on the
services performed or information processed during the period in
accordance with contract terms and the agreed-upon billing rates.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight line basis
over the term of the maintenance service contract.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from computer
equipment let under operating leases, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders' rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from a finance asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold land and
buildings, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

LLeasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet at their
revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair values at
the balance sheet date.

iR M ERRMTE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_ZTTLH=A=t+-RLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_ZTTHF=A=+—ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings
is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to
the consolidated income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is
transferred to accumulated profits.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off the cost or
fair value of items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and develooment expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An intemally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products, commencing in the year when the products
are put into commercial production. Development expenditure
capitalised is carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

The amount initially recognised for interally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where no
interally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intemally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.

Outsourcing contract costs

Costs on outsourcing contracts are generally expensed as incurred.
Certain incremental external costs or specific intemal costs that are
directly related to contract acquisition or transition activities which
were incurred upon initiation of an outsourcing contract are deferred
and charged to expense over the life of the contract. These costs
include the cost of due diligence activities after competitive
selection, costs associated with installation of systems and
processes. Computer equipment acguired in connection with
outsourcing transactions are capitalised in property, plant and
equipment.

AT ERRMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less
any identified impairment loss and are tested for impairment annually
by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irespective of whether there is any indication that they may

be impaired.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment l0ss is
recognised in the profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another accounting
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease under that accounting standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another accounting standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease under that
accounting standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the following
categories set out below. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of each category of financial
assets are set out below:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other
receivables, bank deposits, balances and cash) are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subseguent periods when an increase in the asset's recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in equity, until the investments is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment losses on available-
for-sale investments are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not reverse in
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables and
other payables and accruals) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Receipts in advance

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received for
delivery of goods and/or services and is recognised in profit or loss
over the period stipulated in the respective customer contract
commencing from the date of supply and delivery.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income and
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes income statement items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
consolidated balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007
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HE-FTLF=A=+ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit or loss, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income, included rentals invoiced in advance from computer
equipment let under operating leases, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
leasehold land which title is not expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term is classified as an operating lease unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is classified
as a finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevaliling at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component
of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
charged as an expense as they fall due.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial
gains and losses which exceed 10 per cent of the greater of the
present value of the Group's retirement benefit obligations and the
fair value of plan assets are amortised over the expected average
remaining working lives of the participating employees.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits vest.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains/losses and
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of
plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan.
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BE-_ZZAHF=A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Share-based payment transactions
For share options which were granted to employees of the Group
after 7th November, 2002 and had not yet vested on 1st April,
2005, the fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

When the share options are forfeited, subsequent to vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount recognised
share options reserve will continue to be held in share options
reserve. In relation to share options granted before 1st April, 2005,
the Group chooses not to apply HKFRS 2 “Share-based payments”
with respect to share options granted after 7th November, 2002
and vested before 1st April, 2005, no amount has been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of these equity-
settled shared-based payments.

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, available-for-sale investments,
bank deposits and balances, trade and bills payables and
other payables and accruals. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risks

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is the impact of rate
changes on interest-bearing financial assets. Interest-bearing
financial assets are mainly bank deposits and balances which
are all short-term in nature. Management monitors interest rate
exposure and considers hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk

The Group’s available-for-sale investments are measured at fair
value at each balance sheet date. Therefore, the Group is also
exposed to equity price risk. Management will monitor the
price movements of these assets and make investment
decisions that are considered as appropriate.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31st
March, 2007 in relation to loans and receivables is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has credit
control procedures in place to minimise credit risk. Overdue
palances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

The credit risk for bank deposits and balances is considered
minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with good
credit ratings.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.
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BE-_ZZAHF=A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. €T A @)
b. Fair value (Continued) b. 2AYEEE)
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERR REVBHRERANAMYEREER
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the CRBENEEKATTEZREAEEER
consolidated financial statements approximates their TEERE
corresponding fair values.
5. TURNOVER 5. &XH
Tumover represents the net amount received and receivable for EEBNIEARERIINAREPHEE D (HkR
goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less retums and RE R IR B RBEE LU 2 B R
allowances, and revenue from service contracts, and is analysed ZIFR BN T
as follows:
2007 2006
—EBELE “ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Sales of goods SHEEM 846,628 728,965
Revenue from senvice contracts RERBE L2 WA 428,351 375,274
1,274,979 1,104,239

Over 90% of the Group's revenue is derived from the Hong Kong
market. Atthough the Group sells computer products and provides a
wide range of services, in the opinion of the directors, all the sales of
goods and provision of services are information technology (‘") related
and, in most of the time, are negotiated under a single contract with a
single customer. Accordingly, the directors consider that the Group is
engaged in one single business segment, namely [T services.

ARG EB100%.2 Wan T2R B B 5 #E AR ]
HEEMERRRHBEZZIIRSE BEERR
FTHE 2 — I8 m R PR Ht 2 lRFI A R
B MERBOBRA TORE-—FFUE—]
WA RETREE Bt EERRAEENE 1A
X0 MERBERS-

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hfttlt A
2007 2006
—EELHE “ETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Interest on bank deposits SRITIF A B 9,908 8,047
Rental income H2WA 3,419 1,140
Dividend income from available-for-sale AR ERE 2 R BMWA

investments 2,683 1,655

Exchange gain, net b 5 e F 5E 193
Miscellaneous Hib 391 3,087
16,594 13,929
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FINANCE COSTS

The amount represents interest on bank borrowings wholly repaid

during the year.
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7. BERA

UL TERAFEREBEE Z RITEEZH S -

BE-ZTTLF
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

ZA=+—HLFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. BREIAIRR
2007 2006
—EBLE —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Profit before taxation has been arrived FRES AR A DA HIBR T 51 %18 :
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (Note 9) EEMS (FIzF9) 7,846 7,031
Other staff costs Hih 8 TR
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 244,971 199,217
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RREFIET B FIBR R U 5K
net of forfeited contributions of £9180,000 7T (ZZZRHK
approximately HK$180,000 #F £ :107,00077T)
(FY06: HK$107,000) 6,926 6,310
Share-based payment expense AR BERESZ S 2 X 1,248 619
Total staff costs 48 8 TR 260,991 213,177
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RERREE 3,428 =
Auditors’ remuneration: SRR -
Current year REE 935 777
Overprovision in respect of prior year BT 4) (110)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense GFERAERBRY 766,438 671,522
Depreciation and amortisation: s RN
Property, plant and equipment M B K& 41,780 33,944
Intangible assets (included in cost of EREE (BERNRHRE 2 KA)
services rendered) 3,238 1,882
45,018 35,826
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREEREERE - 74
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE K& EE
and equipment 187 312
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEEPEE R 926 26
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KEREHRS:
Premises LS 6,454 6,201
Computer equipment E R 3,458 1,140
Exchange loss, net bE 5 518 F ’E - 445
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9. EEME

2007 2006
—EEBLHE —TTNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fees we 956 713

Other emoluments: EAiE
Salaries and other benefits e REAMAET 3,728 3,499
Performance related incentive bonus FRINBEE 2 SREIEAL 1,417 1,255
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFIET B4R 1,348 1,326
Share-based payment expense VAR 17 AR 2 Bk 397 238
7,846 7,031

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (FY0B6:

ARBENHEN = (CZTRUBFE:

fifteen) directors were as follows: THRA) EE M0 T:
2007
ZE2tH
Retirement

Performance benefit Share-

Salaries related scheme based

and other incentive contri- payment

benefits  payments butions expense
Fees ¥ek REEEZ BUER SROAER Total
Name of director E=ng ne HitER BT RIS XEX ]
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AL FHL THL TAL FAL AL

(Note)
(FiizE)

Lai Yam Ting WBEE - 2117 1,075 1,324 136 4,712
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 7 - 1,191 342 12 195 1,740
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah Allen Joseph Pathmarajah 130 - - - - 130
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter DHE 104 360 - 12 66 542
Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny BEE 80 - - - - 80
Tan Suan Kheng, Esther )15 13 - - - - 13
George Finlay Bell George Finlay Bell 50 - - - - 50
Darren John Collins Darren John Colins 50 - - - - 50
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 50 - - - - 50
Andrew John Anker Andrew John Anker 29 - - - - 29
Cheung Man, Stephen KX 164 - - - - 164
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter E=3iili 134 - - - - 134
Li King Hang, Richard 3 152 - - - - 152
956 3,728 1,417 1,348 397 7,846
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEME ®»

2006
—TERE
Retirement

Performance benefit Share-

Salaries related scheme based

and other incentive contri- payment

benefits payments butions expense
Fess ek FHEEHZ BIER ARIDAER Total
Name of director EE ik Az RAEA SEfTR XRZRX g

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 H<$000 HKE000
TAT TAT TATL THL THL THEL

(Note)

(BrfzE)
Lal Yam Ting BEE = 1,972 998 1,302 135 4,407
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 2887 = 1,167 257 12 103 1,539
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah Allen Joseph Pathmarajeh 100 - - - - 100
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter FEE 65 360 - 12 = 437
Tan Swee Hock, Sunny B 50 - - - = 50
Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny REE 65 - - - - 65
Tan Suan Kheng, Esther )13 50 - - - - 50
George Finlay Bell George Finlay Bell 25 - - 25
Darren John Collins Darren John Colins 8 - - 8
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 8 = = 8
Michael Wiliam Brinsford Michael Wiliam Brinsford 25 - - 25
Samuel Timothy Hilbert Samuel Timothy Hilbert 42 - - 42
Cheung Man, Stephen KX 115 - - 115
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter il 85 - - 85
Li King Hang, Richard ES 4 75 - - 75
713 3,499 1,255 1,326 2338 7,031

Mict: REAMEZRBIARASEFE R ZE—8
percentage of profit for the year of the Group. palidan-

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined as a

RER AREWESEERIMARER N
ZHe WRBEEEHEEMHE-

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group and no
directors have waived any remuneration.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

10. FIVE HIGHEST-PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included
two (FYOB: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 9 above. The remuneration of the remaining three (FY06:

10. TEREHZES
REBEH 2R DEME (CTTAMBER:
ME) EF R HEHBEER L XA RS-
EH=% (CTTAMBER =) FEF 2R

three) highest paid individuals for the year are as follows: = EE ZMEFENT:
2007 2006
—EBELE —TERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REAER 6,437 7,347
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFIFT S 238 36
Share-based payment expense AR BEREL S 2 X 203 94
6,968 7477

Their remuneration was within the following bands:

REZMENF T 5I8E:

Number of employees

EEAH

2007 2006

—BTLF ZETRF

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 7T - 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017%& 7t — 3,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 77T —5,000,00078 7T - 1
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11. TAXATION 11. B8
2007 2006
—EELEF —ETRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
The charge comprises: MIBZ HB4E:
Current taxation: BNEARHIE :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMET 2,255 6,771
Overseas taxation BINRIR 458 1,637
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEFE BEEE) BT R:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH (300) 1,179
Overseas taxation TEINRIE (300) (127)
2,113 9,360
Deferred taxation (Note 24) IRIERIIE (FieE24) 6,164 813
Taxation attributable to the Company RAR REWBR R EGFIE
and its subsidiaries 8,277 10,173

Hong Kong Profits Tex is calculated at 17.5% (FY06: 17.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits derived from Hong Kong for the year.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

respective jurisdictions.

EENEHDIRERRRES 2 (At RS
BRI E17.5% (ZEERMBEE:17.5%) 1B

Bie

BINERB AR PIERI R & B 2 EHIEE 258

R AE LB
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HE-FTLF=A=+ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

11. TAXATION (Continued) 11. BB )
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before INFERIES [ AT AR G 1855 BR < BRER AT A
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: RO :
2007 2006
—E2tF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Profit before taxation MR AT @ A 61,837 54,652
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 17.5% BEBFERRE7.6%:1E 2 HiE 10,821 9,564
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FERBHEATIRZ 2
for tax purpose 2B 241 290
Tax effect of income not taxable for FERLIS 7 T TS FE AR5 2 A
tex purpose 2R (2,228) (1,421)
(Over)underprovision in prior years BITFE (RREERE) BETR: (600) 1,052
Effect of different tax rate applied to
dividend income from listed securities ERTRVAERES FHEs
in other jurisdiction B BUR A 2 o2 67 (41)
Effect of different tax rates of RBINEEFTE RN R R
overseas operations k-7 264 537
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERZBBBR 2 HBTE - 16
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss not B SERTRIER 2 IS E1E
previously recognised 2R E - (39)
Others Hith (288) 215
Taxation charge for the year FARIES 8,277 10,173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_ZTTLH=A=t+-RLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

12. DIVIDENDS 12. R E
2007 2006
—EBELF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Dividends recognised as distribution RENERBD IR ZIRE
during the year:
Interim of 3.0 HK cents (FY06: 2.0 HK cents) R EARR B &A% 3.0/
per share ZEERPREE 2.080) 8,825 5,876
Final in respect of FY06 of 5.0 HK cents ZETRUMRFERE 2 RERE
(FY05: 4.0 HK cents) per share B0 (ZFF ﬂﬂﬁﬁ(¢§ :
4.074l) 14,702 11,706
Special in respect of FYO6 of 6.0 HK cents ZET MR EE 2 FRRE
(FY05: 6.0 HK cents) per share HE6.08(1L (ZF S ﬁﬁﬁﬁzirr
6.0711l) 17,643 17,560
41,170 35,142
Dividends proposed: FORAR 2.
Final of 6.0 HK cents (FY06: 5.0 HK cents) REARR B & A%6.0751(L
per share (ZETARMBFEE :5.0/810) 17,650 14,694
Special in respect of 6.0 HK cents FERIAR B AR6.078 L
(FY06: 6.0 HK cents) per share (ZZZ R BEE 6.075l) 17,650 17,632
35,300 32,326

The final dividend for the year of 6.0 HK cents per share and the
special dividend for the year of 6.0 HK cents per share, totalling
HK$35,300,000 (FY06: HK$32,326,000) have been proposed by
the directors and is subject to approval by the Company’s

shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted eamings per share is based

on the following data:

BEERRESRNERC.0BI 2 KRB E R E
f%6.078(L 2 B RIR% 8. & $£35,300,000/8 7T (=&
TNEBIERAEE 32,326,000 7T) o R H B AL

EEAREAT BREE
13. BREF
SR R RN HE TR TRER

2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHTT
Eamings for the purpose of basic eamings AUGTESRERREEEZ AT
per share and diluted earings per share 287 53,560 44,479
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BE-_ZZAHF=A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

13. BREF @)

Number of shares

BRHEE
2007 2006
—BTLF —ETRF
’000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AU ESREARZRT) 2 Bk
for the purpose of basic eamings per share It 294,069 292,977
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares TEREEEETE — BE
— Share options 1,810 1,799
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUGHE SREES R BN 2 LBk
for the purpose of diluted eamings per share I 205,879 294,776
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. PE-BRERRE
Leasehold Data Computer
landand  Furniture centre  and office
buildings and Motor equipment equipment
HELH fixtures  vehicles B0 ER Total
kEF HAREE RE BE BLERE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAET THT THT THT THT THT
THE GROUP r&EE
COST OR VALUATION RAS 4B
At 1st Apri, 2005 R-ZTZRFNA—H 90,000 32,270 2,347 5,982 199,161 329,760
Exchange realignment i 7 AR - (1) 1 - (24) (24)
Additions NE = 733 53 770 29,151 30,707
Disposals HE - - (374) - (21,330)  (21,704)
Revaluation adjustment EffAE (6,000) - - - - (6,000)
Reclassffication B - 64 - = (64) =
At 31st March, 2006 RZZFZ F=A=1—H 84,000 33,066 2,027 6,752 206,894 332,739
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AT ERRMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FTLF=A=+ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

14. ME -BERRZRE @

(Continued)
Leasehold Data Computer
landand  Furniture centre  and office
buildings and Motor equipment equipment
HELTH fixtures  vehicles  EEH ElK Total
kBT HAREE RE RE BLAERE @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T THL AL AL AL T
Comprising: afE
At cost [B%N = 33,066 2,027 6,762 206,894 248,739
At valuation — 2006 BE-—TT/F 84,000 = = = = 84,000
84,000 33,066 2,027 6,762 206,894 382,739
Exchange realignment fE X BAE - 72 24 - 699 795
Additions E = 869 198 426 75,435 76,928
Disposals HE - - (5) - (2,463) (2,468)
Revaluation adjustment BHAR 10,800 - - - - 10,800
At 31st March, 2007 R-BE+F=A=+-H 94,800 34,007 2,244 7,178 280,565 418,794
Comprising: B
At cost A = 34,007 2,244 7,178 280,565 323,994
At valuation - 2007 HE-—TT+F 94,800 = = = = 94,800
94,800 34,007 2,244 7,178 280,565 418,794
DEPRECIATION AND HER#BH
AMORTISATION
At 1st Aprl, 2005 R-ZEZRFNA—H 12,656 27,661 2,207 2,729 135,028 180,281
Exchange realignment R - 5 1 - (18) (12)
Provided for the year FREE 2,025 2,511 80 630 28,698 33,944
Eliminated on disposals P E R - - (374) - (18450)  (18,824)
Eliminated on revaluation REfhREH (14,681) - - - = (14,681)
At 31st March, 2006 R=FE F=A=1+—H - 30,177 1,914 3,389 145,268 180,708
Exchange realignment E L - 49 24 - 624 697
Provided for the year FREE 2,036 1,231 74 696 37,743 41,780
Eliminated on disposals P E RS - - (5) - (2,266) (2,271)
Eliminated on revaluation RE R (2,036) = = = = (2,036)
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZEE+tE=A=+-H - 31,457 2,007 4,055 181,359 218,878
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31st March, 2007 R-BZ+t§=A=+-H 94,800 2,550 237 3,123 99,206 199,916
At 31st March, 2006 R=ZFE F=A=1+—H 84,000 2,889 113 3,393 61,636 152,031
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease or 50 years,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Data centre eguipment 10%
Computer and office equipment 20% — 33'/3%

The leasehold land and buildings were revalued by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional valuer, at 31st
March, 2007 at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties. The valuation conforms to Intemational Valuation
Standards. The revaluation gave rise to a net revaluation increase of
HK$12,836,000 (FY06: HK$8,681,000), which has been credited
to the property revaluation reserve. For the year ended 31st March,
2006, the net revaluation increase was HK$8,681,000, of which
HK$4,463,000 was credited to the property revaluation reserve,
and the remaining amount of HK$4,218,000 credited to the income
statement.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation, of approximately HK$74,094,000 (FYO6:
HK$76,550,000).

14. ME-BERRZE®

Lt BE RREZEB DRAERERT
SIEFRITE:

AE+ 1 RiEF 1RERT 2 AL F Ak
B+ ABREHE
HAE)

R 10%—20%

ba 20%

R ORE 10%

BN NS 20%—33'/:%

HET i REFHB Y BEGEMBIERITER
RARZZETLF-A=t+—BLEMHLAR
MR 52 ERE R EEEEITER:
ZIHER A R REER Z A EEEERILE
JFEE12,836,0008 L (ZEEAMHKE
[£:8,681,00077T) * I B 5T AY)SE B E &L
ETTF-A=+—HLEE SHEESF
¥A./58,681,000/4 7T A 4,463,000/8 T2 5T AW
B MirEE4,218,0008LE st AME K

WS T RBF ARG ERG HSEEL KA
& 2t E R# 854074,094 000/ T (Z BTN
BB E 1 76,550,0008 7T ) 5T A S 47 A B 1E
= o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE

Deferred Outsourcing Patents
development contract and Club
costs costs licences member-
BREER SHHER Evil ships Total
B %S RER Elit st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T THT THT T
THE GROUP rEE
COST A
At 1st April, 2005 RZETRFNA—A 15,069 2,807 7,800 900 26,576
Exchange realignment [ERTREEEES - 2 - - 2
Additions NE 6,929 255 = = 7,184
Disposal HE - (45) - - (45)
At 31st March, 2006 RZZEZ F=A=1+—H 21,998 3,019 7,800 900 33,717
Exchange realignment EREREEC LS - 139 - - 139
Additions B 1,487 453 - - 1,940
Transfer R (4,497) - - = (4,497)
Disposal HeE (995) (22) - = (1,017)
At 31st March, 2007 R-BBtF=A=+-H 17,993 3,589 7,800 900 30,282
AMORTISATION AND BHRAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2005 RZETRFMA—A 11,396 636 7,800 = 19,832
Exchange realignment ERTREEC LS - 1 - - 1
Provided for the year FRRE 1,524 358 - - 1,882
Impaiment loss recognised  FRER 2 RIERFE
in the year - 74 - - 74
Eliminated on disposal R SRS 3 - (9) = - (9)
At 31st March, 2006 RZEZTAF=A=+—H 12,920 1,060 7,800 = 21,780
Exchange realignment ERTREEC LS - 72 - - 72
Provided for the year FRRE 2,423 815 - - 3,238
Bliminated on disposal R EREH (80) (11) = = (91)
At 31st March, 2007 R-EE+HF=A=+—-H 15,263 1,936 7,800 - 24,999
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31st March, 2007 W=B2+F=A=+-8 2,730 1,653 - 900 5,283
At 31st March, 2006 RZEZTAF=A=+—H 9,078 1,959 = 900 11,937

The club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at cost

less any identified impairment.

BERERFHZ e R A RERE 5
IEEED R
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Other than club memberships, the above intangible assets have

definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the following periods:

Deferred development costs
Qutsourcing contract costs
Patents and licences

3 years
Over contract life
2 years

All of the Group’s patents and licences were acquired from

third parties.

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

15. BILEE &)

Barmassh by EES ARRERF
WA BARER T HIEAR A sy :

SMHIE HIRAR
SR R

3F
BHIFH
24

EREE 2 ERERERIOBEFE =,

16. BEE N E RS

2007 2006

—EELHE —ETRAF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Share of net assets EihEEFE 242 79

Particulars of the Group's unlisted associates at 31st March, 2007

are as follows:

Percentage

of nominal value
of issued ordinary
share capital

Country/place of held indirectly

incorporation by the Company

and operation EARBERE
Name of associate FMRIREE ERTERRAK Principal activities
BENT BB ZER 3 fEZARL FEEK
ASL Automated Services Thailand 49% Provision of engineering
(Thailand) Limited =B and software services
R TIE R AR
IN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 33.3% Provision of engineering
JBFT and software services

TR A2 R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

17. AEHERE

2007 2006
—EBELE ZEEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Listed shares overseas, at market value AN ETRD - T E 33,641 22,094
Particulars of the listed shares held by the Group as at 31st March, AEBR-_BTLF=A=+—BFEZLHHE
2007 are as follows: FEEmT:

Percentage of

nominal value of

issued ordinary

Place of share capital

incorporation held by the Group

and operation REBEEMN
Name of investee MR EE BOTEBRZ Principal activities
ARER 2B B FEER
Data Systems Consulting Taiwan 3.1% Sale of computer products
Company, Limited G and provision of
SHINEIRDER AT engineering and software
services
HEBMER RRETE
MRS

18. INVENTORIES 18. &

2007 2006
—EELEF ZEEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Goods held for resale BIEEEZEY 40,280 29,472
Goods pending customers’ acceptance BEREPEMNCEY 54,124 39,194
Contracts in progress REKE L 14,569 9,245
108,973 77,911

Goods held for resale and goods pending customers’ acceptance

mainly represent computer equipment and software products.

Contracts in progress mainly comprise costs of labour directly

engaged in project development and installation contracts.

FIFBE B RBREFEMNCENEIERE
EHREIEGER AERANEZRFERY
Mt BIBRMLZEL N2 B TR
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. ERE ZFE
The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for REBZABREFPERNEHZHE0REERFE
30 days. An aged analysis of the trade receivables at the balance W B SFIEREE B 2 R D ITIRIE A E# R
sheet date, based on payment due date and net of allowance of RNk B4, 068,000 T (Z TP HE
HK$4,068,000 (FY06: HK$2,351,000), is as follows: £:2,351,000/87T) 20K :
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
0-1 month o0—11& A8 92,851 78,744
1 —2 months 1—2f@A8 16,549 9,992
2 — 3 months 2—3f@A 10,966 4,093
Over 3 months HBiE3(E A 15,553 11,117
135,919 103,946
20. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. AttERFEIE - RERFANKIEA
PREPAYMENTS
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HAbRUER e RIEFIE 55,784 38,546
Amount due from immediate holding company BEEZERARIRR 6 6
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries R RKBARRRK 4,292 9,709
Amount due from an associate P BN AR 789 1,770
60,871 50,031
The amounts due from immediate holding company, fellow BEEZERAR RRHER R REGEARIRRE
subsidiaries and an associate are unsecured, interest free and EER 2 ERBRERER

repayable on demand.
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21. SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

22,

23.

BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31st March, 2007, short term bank deposits comprise
deposits held by the Group with an original maturity not less than
three months and include bank deposits of approximately
HK$100,000 (31st March, 2006: HK$100,000) that have been
pledged to secure certain short term banking facilities of the Group.
Other bank balances comprise deposits held by the Group with an

original maturity of three months or less.

Bank balances and short term bank deposits carry interest at market
rates with average interest rate of 2.6% and 4.2% per

annum, respectively.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

21, EHBTER RT

iR M ERRMTE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

ERRAE

R-TZT+F=A=+—A BHRITEREE
AEEFRFEERIPBTPR=ZEA ZFx I
BIEAEA100,0008TT (ZTEENF=A=1+—
H:100,00047T) B R{EERA S EE T8 BiR
TRVE 2 SRITE R HAb IR TSR B IR AN E AT
BERIMAS=EAKATZFRe

IRITRES MR HIRIT IR SRR B £
EFIRS B E2.6%K%4.2% °

22 BENESZRERRE

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance
sheet date, based on payment due date, is as follows:

N E SFEREBNEE B 2RI DT (R
NHREHAR) AT

2007 2006
—EBEtHE ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
0 -1 month o0—1{&A 157,344 107,895
1 -2 months 1—2{@A 5,942 5,009
2 — 3 months 2—3{EA 2,771 2,878
Over 3 months HBid3ME A 19,295 11,731
185,352 127,513

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HitE A RIEARETTER
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Other creditors and accruals HAb (S EEIE&JE‘EJr%FH 41,237 36,013
Amount due to immediate holding company REZZERAT] 833 817
Amount due to ultimate holding company REHAERR A RIFRIE 7,334 4,453
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries UNEEA NG/ 16,406 18,240
65,810 59,623

The amounts due to immediate holding company, ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

REEZERR R REER AR R R ZMEAF
ZHORRERIR 28 MARERIEER-
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the

24, ELERHIE

Group and movements thereon during the current and RERNz#F):

preceding years:

AT HASE R T R2REHRA B RAF

Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of
depreciation properties Total
MERETE MEE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FHET FET
At 1st April, 2005 RN—EERFNA—H 9,398 - 9,398
Charge to consolidated income statement REREBREAZH 813 - 813
Charge to equity B RANF kR - 781 781
At 31st March, 2006 R=ZTZT F=A=1+—H 10,211 781 10,992
Charge to consolidated income statement REREBREAZH 6,164 - 6,164
Charge to equity B R HER - 2,246 2,246
At 31st March, 2007 R-EZLF=A=+—H 16,375 3,027 19,402
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A
Number of shares Amount
BRAEE K}
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETLF ZTTREF —EEtHE ZETRF
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR Tk FET FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE010BIT 2 @R
Authorised: SETERRAR:
At 1st April and 31st March REA—BR=ZA=1+—H 600,000 600,000 60,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE:
At 1st April REA—H 293,792 291,738 29,379 29,173
Exercise of share options 1R R 378 2,054 38 206
At 31st March R=A=+—H 294,170 293,792 29,417 29,379
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25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year, the Company issued 378,000 ordinary shares of
HIK$0.10 each at the subscription prices ranging from HK$1.28 to
HK$1.34 per share (FY0B: 2,054,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each at the subscription prices ranging from HK$0.9 to HK$1.34
per share) under the share options scheme of the Company.

The new shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares in
issue in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
16th October, 1997 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to any employee and/or director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual under the Scheme shall
not exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares for the time
being issued and issuable under the Scheme. Options granted
must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon payment
of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the higher of 80% of the average of the closing prices of the
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options, and the nominal value of
the shares.

Pursuant to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Rules Goveming
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange which became
effective from 1st September, 2001, any options granted after 1st
September, 2001 must comply with the provisions of the revised
Chapter 17. In order for the Company to be able to grant options to
its director and/or other eligible participants after 1st September,
2001, the Scheme was terminated and a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
in the general meeting held on 8th August, 2002. As a result, the
Company can no longer grant any further share option under the
Scheme. However, all share options granted prior to 1st
September, 20071 will remain in full force and effect.

iR M ERRMTE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

25, IRA (&)

RER - RIFA R T2 BEARMEST S 378, 00018 &
ARG REEO. 107 TTHIARBESRNT1.28
BILE1 S4B TITR(ZEZRNMREER
2,054,00018 E3BARFARE EO. 1078 7T LARR RSB
BN F0.908TLE1.3487T) ©

ZEER A RN AR EE LA RFHAL

26. BRREFTE

BAARNABISKETMMNEA R MRS R 3k
EEREREROF ARAR-NNEEFETA
TN BERA— IR IR ERT 8 ([Za18l]) - 1RiB:Z
BRI TR A+ 2 B RRAE AT 3R 88 2 AR 1D 2K
B &Z TMESRBRZE R THESRMHBE
226% o ERHIEIRE LA B BitEEt 28K
REW ERESERHBAS MBS TEANE.
TEETBHARRESET R TEORRG
FBERRHERZ L B BART A{ERR 5 B B R 2 45
W8 2 80% R AR D EIE & 2 BimE

*E%J%Hé‘w EH EMRAETEEZEFT (R

—FNA—BER) R-_ZE—FN1A—H
1%:?*512&(7%&?22%@??/\% CHIE v
B -RABARRAIR-_ZEE—FNA—HR%
MEERRHEMEERDEER N ERE
AABERIEZETE ARER_FT_F/\H
/\EI@ﬁZHx%K@iL@Z%E%%%%W—Iﬁﬁéﬁ
fERaERt B (FRtE)) Bt RARITMSHRE
Frt B — R A - %ﬁﬁ R=TZT—
FNAA-BRERKZ BB IAEE T
RN R
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
Under the New Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general
requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period
before it can be exercised but the directors of the Company is
empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at
the time of grant of any particular option. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of the
Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be
exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options;
and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The New Scheme will expire
on 7th August, 2012,

At 31st March, 2007, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted under the Scheme and the New Scheme
was 17,511,000 (FY0B: 15,449,000), representing 6.0% (FYO6:
5.3%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

26.

BRESTE (e

R AR RESTHAEBEER (BIEX
ARIREMBATZ EF) B BRENZEA
AT IRIBFTEH BITT IR 2 BRAE AT BB 2
B B8 TSR BA A TSR B 8T
BRIDZ10% o PMEIERR T AL 2 BARHEA
202 RSB TERBAD AR
ERTIRG 21% o ERHIARELERES B
SR PR NS ER B A BTTLIE
ARE- RS T E—RRTERBRIESEAT
5 R A BT 6 B 4578 R AR 2 (T TSR ER - 1
AN FV R R R AT T B AR -
195 M A 1) S A AR o AT 455 08 AR 2 IR 355 e
AAREEEMBET HEOBRE—ET
SRR BB S 1O @R T o 1T {E B Th AR
AREFET HEFEIRUT=ER2EE
% (2)BIA R T ARAESE B B FE RS T 2 W H 18+ ()
RRISRIBRIER I B BIAT TR 5 B RS 2
FIPTHE: ROBRGEEFA SR - ——
&\ A+E R

R-ZTT+F=A=1+—R BEZTE R
B 2 AR A 17,511,0008% (ZTZX
WBUEF[E :15,449,0000%) - IHERARFIRE A
BITHRD 26.0% (Z T T NHMIBFE :5.3%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 26. EIEFTE @)
The following table discloses detalls of the share options held by TEREBREE (BIEES) B NBREEAT
employees (including directors) under the Scheme and the New G FFERBRIEZT 8 KA 8 2 BB

Scheme and movements in such holdings during the current and
preceding years:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RTEBRERRT 2 RE
Balance Balance
at at
1.4.2006 Granted  Exercised Lapsed Cancelled  31.3.2007
RZBEREF during during during during R=ZF+tF Exercise
Date of grant MA—A the year the year the year theyear =A=1-H Exercise period price
BEAH ZHE  RERRE  RERTE  REAXN  REREH 2B Caid e
HKS
B
2007
“EEtE
Scheme
Zité
2.3.1999 740,000 - - - - 740,000 3.3.2001 toF 2.3.2009 0.90
19.10.1999 2,050,000 - - (70,000) - 1,980,000  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 2.30
11.2.2000 2,075,000 - - (35,000) (1,975,000) 65,000 12.2.2002 toZ 11.2.2010 3185
30.6.2000 590,000 - - (20,000)  (530,000) 40,000 1.7.2002 t0Z 30.6.2010 3.40
27.7.2001 2,268,000 - - (74,000) - 2,194,000 27.7.2003 toZ 26.7.2011 2.40
7,723,000 - - (199,000) (2,505,000) 5,019,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
ARERTRE 5,019,000
Weighted average
EXercise price
IETHAEE 2.50 - - 2.63 3.36 2.16
New Scheme
#ird
20.11.2002 2,374,000 - (206,000) (24,000) - 2144000  20.11.2003 toZ 19.11.2012 1.34
6.8.2004 2,464,000 - (172,000) (68,000) - 2,224,000 6.8.2005 to£ 5.8.2014 1.28
9.6.2005 2,888,000 - - (80,000) - 2,808,000 9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015 1.98
19.6.2006 - 2,883,000 - - - 2,883,000 19.6.2007 toZ 18.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2006 - 1,300,000 - (28,000) - 1,272,000 30.6.2006 toF 29.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2006 - 1,204,000 - (48,000) - 1,156,000 30.6.2007 toZE 29.6.2016 1.95
7,726,000 5,392,000 (378,000)  (248,000) - 12,492,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
ARERTRE 5,662,000
Weighted average
EXercise price
IETHAEE 1.56 1.95 1.31 1.72 - 1.73
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

26. ERETE @

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options
NTERERERAR T RE

Balance Balance
at at
1.4.2006 Granted Exercised lapsed  31.3.2006
RZZTh%¥ during during duing R=BEAREF Bxercise
Date of grant mA—H the year the year theyear ZA=+—H Exercise period price
K A ZHE  RERRE  RERTR RERXK ZHE T HR 18
HKS
BT
2006
ZETE
Scheme
FZitél
2.3.1999 930,000 - (190,000) - 740,000 3.3.2001 toZ 2.3.2009 0.90
19.10.1999 2,160,000 - - (100,000) 2,050,000  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 2.30
11.2.2000 2,175,000 - - (100,000) 2,075,000 12.2.2002 to% 11.2.2010 335
30.6.2000 630,000 - - (40,000) 590,000 1.7.2002 102 30.6.2010 340
27.7.2001 2,354,000 - - (86,000) 2,268,000 27.7.2003 to£ 26.7.2011 2.40
8,239,000 - (190,000)  (326,000) 7,723,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
ARERITE 7,723,000
Weighted average exercise price
MEFHTEE 2.53 - 090 2.78 2.56
New Scheme
#ard
20.11.2002 4,068,000 - (1,652,000)  (132,000) 2,374,000  20.11.2003 toF 19.11.2012 1.34
6.8.2004 3,000,000 - (312,000)  (224,000) 2,464,000 6.8.2005 to£ 5.8.2014 1.28
9.6.2005 - 2,888,000 - - 2,883,000 9.6.2006 toZ£ 8.6.2015 1.98
7068000 2,888,000 (1,864,000) (356,000) 7,726,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
ARERITHRE 3,000,000
Weighted average exercise price
METHEE 1.31 1.98 1.33 1.31 1.56
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

For options granted under the New Scheme, other than the
1,300,000 options granted on 30th June, 2006 which are vested
immediately, the rest are vested equally over 3 years from the date
of grant.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise is HK$1.92
(FY06: HK$1.93). The weighted average closing price immediately
before the date of exercise is HK$1.92 (FY06: HK$1.93).

In respect of the share options granted on 19th June 2006 and
30th June, 2006 (FY06: 9th June, 2005), the estimated fair values
of the options on the dates of grant were calculated using the
Binomial model. The estimated fair values were ranging form
HK$0.31 to HK$0.53 (FY06: HKF0.35). The inputs into the model
were as follows:

iR M ERRMTE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_ZTTLH=A=t+-RLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

26. BRETE @)

PARRITE TR L 2 BAEN S RN TR
FRA=ZTBERE &EEDHW%EZW ,300,00013
BRI R TR R BB AT =
FHENSR

FRFENTTE 2 BREM S AT B ER 2 hngE
FHIRR(E A1.0278 T (Z T MR EFE 1.9375
T0) SR EREAT(E B BRI Z i B A1.92
B (CEEAPREE:1.9887T)

BR=F 7/\¢/\H+HE|&*? TRERNA=
TR (Z2ERMREE: ZTTRFANR)
B2 BRGEN E - AR B2 AR AT A
FEAEDRAZEAGEERGE AT ATE
ENFO3EILE0LIE T (BT ARIHFE:
0.35/7T) SWEAZ EZLHI T

2007 2006

—EBLF ZETRF

Weighted average share price IEFERRE HK$1.9675 5T HK$1.898 7T
Exercise price 1T{EE HK$1.95%8 5T HK$1.98% 7T
Expected volatility TEHRK IR 22% 32%
Expected life TEETFHA 31toZE 8.7yearsF 3.7 toF 8.2 yearsF
Risk-free rate R R b 4.83% 3.50%
Expected dividend vield TE AR FR 2.80% 2.54%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company for the weekly closing share price for the period of 52
weeks before the date of grant.

During the year, the Group recognised total expense of
HK$1,645,000 (FY06: HK$857,000) in relation to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions.

Total consideration received during the year from employees for
taking up the shares under the options amounted to HK$107
(FY06: HK$28).

TR IE TR A AR BB N B HAT62E 4
fl 2 SRR THE 2 BAEKIETE -

FR AREBBBALEE AR N2 XS HER
BFET1,645,0008 T (ZEE X MRFEE:
857,000/ 7T) °

KRR BIEF ABLE B B NIRRT 2 B9 Mk
MZBREZEI07TET (ZEENURFE 28
BIT) °
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Defined contribution plans:
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. The
MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated a
defined contribution scheme which is registered under the
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”). This ORSO Scheme operated in a similar way to the
MPF Scheme, except that where there were employees who left the
ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group were reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions. With effect from 1st December, 2001, the
ORSO Scheme was suspended.

Defined benefit plan:

The Group also operates a defined benefit plan for a qualifying
director of the Company. Under the plan, the director is entitled to
retirement benefits based on 120% or 175.25% of final average
salary multiplied by completed months of service on attainment of a
retirement age of 60, or of age at least 50 with 25 years of services.
The assets of the fund are held separately from those of the
Company, in funds under the control of trustees. The scheme is
non-contributory on the part of the director and the Company is
obliged to meet the full cost of all benefits due to the director under
the plan.

27.

RAKBFETE

RERKEE:

AEE BB S ERES S —IRTEHKAH
MREEE S ([REEEE]) @R En
—TTREA— ARBRIEATESGOIRT
HRTDREEEAFEZE —AOLLHE IR
RigaEe 8 2 RABE NN A BamikT
kr-am St B 2 BEERERALRN 2 EDF
B BAKEEENREH-ARERREDE
HFIR AR R EE MG

RRTES T B A RRAT A EE S —TRRIBRE
RGTBIGGIE R 2 SUE ARG B (RS RIRET
SRGIETEN]) - ZBER KT BIRDIET B Hoa 7R
ST EIZERET L EHEERES 2 HH)
FRA AR SR IRE B IR GI R B RIS SR B R A
ZHFRA BRIz R85 =TT —
FH-—A—B AEED P IEBRERNRETEIE
EER

RERATE:
RRBMABEERZESE R —BRER/AE
ZREZE EEARZTARET AT
120%8175.25% T LA B IR IRF B /S TRk &
At+mmERE =+ RFERBE=RREANB 2R
R ZE e v AERETIAZHZESRKE:
AR AEEDRFR-ERHERZEIED
HR MAR A RIRZET EIEN FESZ
FiBE Tz 28 Ao
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

Defined benefit plan: (Continued)

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at 31st March, 2007 were
carried by BMI Appraisals Limited, independent actuary. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation, the related current service

iR M ERRMTE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

27. RIREFIGFTE @)

REBFE: (&)

B AEH A A BB R AR ARG E 2 E
EARR - ETLF=A=+—HZAERMNE
EZREETRN P2 bE-RERNEE A
RATRF ARTE R A BB ARIE RN AN 2 BB T AT

cost and past service cost were measured using the projected unit BN EEATE -EAZ T EREBRRNT:
credit method. The main actuarial assumptions used were
as follows:
2007 2006

—EELF ZETRF
Discount rate = 4.2% 4.3%
Expected retum on plan assets TEEFTEIE ERIR 7.0% 7.0%
Expected rate of salary increases TEEET 2 1518 3.3% 3.3%

Expected retumn rate on plan assets is determined by reference to
historical data of Hang Seng Index.

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets
was HK$7,216,000 (FY06: HK$5,316,000) and the present value
of the funded obligations was HK$6,019,000

(FY06: HK$5,553,000).

T BIAE 2 B IS
BiE iR

EEARBZESL

FREMERT 88 E 2 TERT7,216,000/8 7T
(ZZZRMBFE:53816,00087T) MESE
£ 2B 1E/46,019,000/8 T (ZET A MBFE:
5,553,000/ 7T) ©

Amounts recognised in consolidated income statement during the RAFERAERAGEERRGEBRR 2
year in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows: AU :

2007 2006

—ETLE —TTRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Current service cost IR ARIS AR 420 410
Interest cost F 2 AA 258 254
Expected retum on plan assets TE HAET &4 E Bl R (300) (287)
Transitional liability recognised EREREBEHEE 928 928
Net actuarial gain recognised in the year NEMERZ FraE NS (270) (210)
Administrative cost TR AN 2 2
1,038 1,097

The charge for the year of HK$1,038,000 (FY06: HK$1,097,000)
has been included in administrative expenses.

REFE 2 F% A1,038,000/87T (ZET BB E
& 1,097,000 7T) WEFIAFTEE A

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEIZLKEEERAT  Annua Report 2007 3

97



A ERARMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-FTLF=A=+ALFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued) 27. BRERETE @
Defined benefit plan: (Continued) REFRE!: (B)
The actual retumn on plan assets was HK$581,000 (FY06: sHEIBE 2 B D3R A581,00008 7T (Z 2T
HK$575,000). R4 E 1575,00047T) °
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's AARRRBBEACRIGFE 2 EAEEMIIAE
obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: EABERZESENT:
2007 2006
—BELE —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Present value of funded obligations EEBEFZRE 6,019 5,553
Fair value of plan assets FrEIEEZ ATEE (7,216) (5,316)
(Surplus) deficit (B5R) B4t (1,197) 237
Net actuarial gains not recognised AR R IR E W a 2,601 2,470
Unrecognised transitional liability RERBEMBE - (930)
Net liability arising from defined AERNETMELEZBEFE
benefit obligation 1,494 1,777
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in AEERERANEEZREZHNT:
the current year were as follows:
2007 2006
—EBLE —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH&T
At 1st April RUA—H 5,553 5,086
Current service cost IR IR AR TS K AR 420 410
Interest cost F B A 258 254
Actuarial gains FEE W (212) (197)
At 31st March N=A=+—8H 6,019 5,553
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

28

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year
were as follows:

iR M ERRMTE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_ZTTLH=A=t+-RLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

27. ERBEFETE @)

AEFEFEEEZAFEEZFHNT:

2007 2006

—EELF —EERE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHx FHBIT

At 1st April ®IWA—H 5,316 3,452
Expected return on plan assets TEHAGTEIE E R 300 287
Actuarial gains TEE W 281 288
Contributions from the employer BEHK 1,319 1,289
At 31st March W=A=+—8 7,216 5,316

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee:

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of certain of its office premises and computer equipment
which fall due as follows:

28. EHEHELEE

REBEREEA:

REE R AEERE A BEHEXHOAR
FIH ﬁﬂi‘iﬁﬁ%@z#ﬂ#ﬁl&ﬁ&Eéﬁ%‘%&ﬁZﬂiK
RIBBAS AT

2007 2006

—EELF —TETNE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Within one year —FR 6,921 5,930
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEZFERT (BREEEMTE) 2,660 133
9,581 6,003

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of two
years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

Leases for computer equipment are negotiated for an average term
of one year and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

MAEREZHO TP —FiER— R HEEE
WA Z £

EBhEE < HAOTE —FRER— R HE2EER
B2 ke
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor:

At 31st March, 2006, the Group had contracted with a tenant for
future minimum lease payments of HK$3,419,000 in respect of
certain computer equipment under operating leases which fall due

within one year.

The lease is contracted for one year and rentals are fixed over the

term of the lease.

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st March, 2007, the Group has provided counter indemnities
to banks in respect of guarantees issued by the banks to the
Group's customers amounting to HK$20,350,000 (FY06:

HK$16,523,000).

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group's bank deposits of approximately HK$100,000 (FYO6:
HK$100,000) has been pledged to secure the banking facllities of
the Group. At 31st March, 2007, no bank facilities were

being utilised.

28.

29.

30.

EEMOEE @

KEBEEREERA:

R-ETRF-A=-t+—RA FAEEEBFEHE
T BRI IR —FEREIHI 2 & TBAIAR R
{4 X 53,419,000 T

RN AR —F HeBENENZ Eo

RREE

REZTE+F=A=1+—R AEERBTHT
AEEEFPZERABABRITRMARH
20,350,000/ 7T (ZFZ<MBF/E : 16,523,000
BIT) 2 R¥ER-

BEEEH

ANEE 2RI TIFR49100,0008 78 (Z T/ B
FE:100,000/7T) BEREARNEERERIRT
BMEZER-RZTEZLF=A=+—R W&
FR{EfIRI TR E B8
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

)

@

©

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries, immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company:

iR M ERRMTE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

3. BEALRS

(1)

AEFERFRMB AR ERERAR IR
BRI AR ZR5:

2007 2006

—EELF —EERE
Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$'000
RHHEE FHET FHETT
Fellow subsidiiaries: WER Al
Sales by the Group AEEHEE 2,960 531
Purchases by the Group AEBEHEE 2,486 129
Staff costs charged by the Group AEEFW 2z ETHX 1,670 3,869
Expenses charged to the Group AEBEL 2R 18,477 18,970
Immediate holding company: BEAERAA]
Staff costs charged by the Group AEEHBKZBETRY - 9
Expenses charged to the Group AEEZ 2R 833 395
Ultimate holding company: AR N A
Purchases by the Group AEERE 836 993
Staff costs charged by the Group AEEZBM B THY 207 42
Expenses charged to the Group AEBEZ 2R 3,124 1,364
A contribution of HK$1,319,000 (FY06: HK$1,289,000) was 2 AEBRARR—BEZMRTEATE
made by the Group in respect of a defined benefit plan for a {EH1,319,0008 L (ZZEE P REFE:
director of the Company (note 27). 1,289,000/ 7T) 2 f3x (BfizE27) ©
The Group's balances with related parties are set out in notes Q) AEEEREEA L HNERIENHTFE20
20 and 283. $23°
Key management compensation is disclosed in notes 9 and 4) EEZEEAEMERHZE R10AEKE-

10.
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st March, 2007 are

32. B ZH1E
R-FBLF=A=+—R ARAZKHBA

as follows: BT
Percentage of
Country/place of Nominal nominal value of
incorporation/ value of issued issued share capital
establishment and fully paid held directly
and operation share capital by the Company
Name of subsidiary FMEL/ BIR BERTR KAAEERT Principal activities
WEARAR BEER /WY BERE RAEEA AL FTEXH
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% Investment holding, sale of
BEZEG (B8) BRAR B Ordinary shares computer products and solutions
BT ERR and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
HK$55,350,000 senvices) and software services
*Non-voting (including software development,
deferred shares consulting and professional services)
*56,350,000787C REBR HEBKERRBARER
ERZEELER REFHRS (BEZER
RER) KBRS
(RREBMRE BRREERE)
ELM Computer Technologies Limited Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 100%  Sale of computer products and solutions
BMEREHRBRAT & Ordinary shares and provision of hardware senices
12,000,000 7T (including installation and maintenance
LER senvices) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEERERRBRALTRR
REBHRS (BRZER
RERB) REMHRS
(RRERMRE BRREERE)
CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau MOP10,000 100%  Sale of computer products and solutions
BEZEG (R BRAR B Ordinary shares and provision of hardware senvices
E%10,0007T (including installation and maintenance
LRk services) and software services

(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEEMERRBATRER
RIS (BRELER
RERY) Rat R
(RRERMRE BRREERE)
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

iR M ERRMTE
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BE-_ZTLF=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007

32. B AT 25 1E @)

Percentage of
Country/place of Nominal nominal value of
incorporation/ value of issued issued share capital
establishment and fully paid held directly
and operation share capital by the Company
Name of subsidiary TRMEYL/HIK BETR EDAEERT Principal activities
WEARER BEAR BERA BRARGZERL TEEH
ASL Automated (Thalland) Limited Thailand BHT50,000,000 100% Sale of computer products and solutions
RE Ordinary shares and provision of hardware services
F££50,000,0007C (including installation and maintenance
LER services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEBMERIBATRR
RERIRE (BERE
RERS) REMHRS
(BEEHRE BRI RS ERE)
Guangzhou Automated Systems People's Republic HK$4,000,000 100% Sale of computer products and solutions
Limited of China (Note) and provision of hardware services
EMREXEEENE BEIN= I 4,000,000/ 7T (including installation and maintenance
BRAA (Hiz5) senvices) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEBRERRBATER
RERIRE (BERE
RERS) REMHRS
(BEEHRE BRI RS ERE)
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands? USs$2 100% Property holding
RERTES Ordinary shares WERE
EeoTERR
Express Retumns Limited British Virgin Islands’ US$2 100% Property holding
RERLEE Ordinary shares MERE
FeonLEk
Express Profits Development Limited British Virgin Islands® US$2 100% Property holding
RERTES Ordinary shares MERE
EEomEBR

Note:

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company,
carry practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to

participate in any distribution on winding up.

These companies operated in Hong Kong.

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the
People's Republic of China as a whally foreign owned enterprise and
had a registered capital of HK$10,000,000. The amount of
HK$4,000,000 disclosed above represents the amount of registered

capital paid up to 31st March, 2007.

Pt

ERFEEER (YIRARBRRES) LEHE
RERMUSEIR SR A A BHERIBCRAE 2 B S
FHBERRAGING LIRRR2EERE 2 (F
A&

FZERBNEBEE-

BENREEEEERRERAT IR EARL
MBAEMAEIEBELCE EEMELA
10,000,000/ 7T ok X 4% #8 2 & %84,000,000%8 7T
HREBE S HFE=A=+—B2B8:M
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e ESGEBAR AR —FTE2WE LEEZE N\ 7T
Automated Systems Holdings Uimited —

Major Subsidiaries and Associates

Hong Kong

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited

15/F Topsail Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998  Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited

11/F Topsall Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2541 9900 Fax: (852) 2541 1338

Macau

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D" Assumpcao No. 180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392  Fax: (853) 2878 6390

In Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D" Assumpcao No. 180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392  Fax: (853) 2878 6390

Mainland China

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

Rm 2001-3, 20/F, Block 4, Dong Jun Plaza
836 Dong Feng Road East, Guangzhou, China
Tel: (8620) 8760 5518  Fax: (8620) 8767 5383

Thailand

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9/F, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 392 2184  Fax: (662) 381 2981

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9/F, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 392 2184  Fax: (662) 381 2981

Taiwan

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited

3F, No. 18, Sec. 6, Ming-Chuen East Road
Nei-Hu Dist. 114, Taipei, Taiwan, R. O. C.

Tel: (886) 2 8792 8598  Fax: (886) 2 8792 8569
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ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9/F, Soi Sukhumvit 55

(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited
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15/F., Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, H.K.
Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
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